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Chairman’s statement
EERBRFE

In 2019, the global economy showed signs of slowing down amid
uncertainties such as the China-US trade war and Brexit, threatening
free trade in general. During the year, at the impact of factors at home
and abroad, China’s gross domestic product grew slower, from 6.6%
in 2018 to 6.1% in 2019, but still relatively stable nevertheless. In
response to changing global economic conditions and development
trends, Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) braved the challenges
by timely adjusting operating strategies to drive development of its

businesses.

On the biochemical business front, with China affected by the
African swine fever epidemic, swine population shrank significantly
against the previous year and inventory levels lingered at the lowest
levels in recent years. Moreover, China announced a ban in phases
of antibiotics use in animal feed additives starting from 1 January
2020. This move will gradually reduce all types of antibiotics
(excluding Chinese herbal medicine) additives in animal feeds to
promote growth. Globally, the African swine fever has kept on
spreading; outbreaks have been reported in different places, including
Southeast Asia, Europe and Russia. Restricting and banning the use
of antibiotics has been a growing trend in the global animal farming
industry as well. Countering such harsh challenges, the Group actively
pushed to tighten product quality control, open new sales channels
and develop antibiotic alternatives. These measures are designed to
diversify our product mix and sales channels enhancing sustainable

operating results.

During the year, the Group pressed ahead with a series of innovation
and reforms to enable it to seize opportunities and tackle challenges
in the changing industry environment. Product and technological
innovation has always been a key emphasis of the Group. The Group
stepped up cooperation on research and development with relevant
academic institutions and obtained a number of advanced technology
patents, so that it would be well-prepared for the advent of the ban
on the use of antibiotics in animal feed additives. In operation and
production, the Group continued to employ “Six Sigma” management,
optimize operational flow and implement a series of automation
initiatives and energy saving programs. Energy consumption was
reduced, production efficiency was boosted and product quality was

enhanced.
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The Group also reinforced its commitment to sustainable
development. To improve overall safety management, measures to
promote safety awareness among employees and to build an overall
work safety ownership culture were implemented. In support of
China’s environmental protection mandate, the Group took it upon
itself to transform its waste reduction and sewage treatment systems,
succeeding in reducing emission of various pollutants and contributing
to the environment where it operates. The Group values talent and
offers them training programs on production, management and sales
to hone their work skills and all-round qualities, giving employees a

platform to develop and advance in their career.

On the industrial business front, sales of excavators saw a sharp
increase in 2017 and 2018. Especially in 2018, with urbanization and
rural area development moving full steam ahead in China along with
renewal of existing excavator install base, demand for our equipment
sky-rocketed. In 2019, the excavator industry gradually entered into a
stage of steady development. Meanwhile, the Group was also affected
by the overall economic slowdown and increasing competition from

rising local brands.

In 2019, performance of the automobile industry in China continued
to deteriorate, whereas the motorcycle industry reported some
growth. Zhanjiang Deni continued to enhance its market and product
structures and invest in developing new parts, so as to operate firmly

in a sustainable manner.

Looking ahead, upholding our “Three-Benefit Principle” — benefit the
countries in which we operate, benefit the people whose community
we share and benefit the enterprises for which we are responsible —
we will work hard to refine and expand our sales channels, strictly
abide by environmental laws and regulations, proactively tackle
uncertainties in our operating environment and realise higher quality

development.

Finally, I would like to thank all employees for their hard work and

contribution in 2019 and also shareholders for their trust and support.

Soopakij Chearavanont
Chairman
Hong Kong, 9 April 2020
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Financial Highlights
B E

(Unit: US$’000) (#fr : FxXTIC) 2019 2018
Key Statement of Comprehensive Income Items FEEmMK L REH
Revenue WA 105,042 93,362
Gross Profit EV | 28,948 27,254
Profit Attributable to Shareholders of the Company A\ V] B R HE A 8 ) 15,800 21,164
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (US cents)” B B B A T M A (34l 6.24 8.35
Key Statement of Financial Position Items FEMBRREXEH
Property, Plant & Equipment L E B Y &L 74,705 60,648
Total Assets W 292,657 267,712
Total Bank Borrowings HEERATAE K 15,951 11,631
Issued Capital EEATIRA 25,333 25,333
Shareholders’ Equity T M A W 2% 199,189 185,762
Total Equity HE 25 4450 222,413 209,546
Revenue US$’000 Gross Profit US$’000
WA FETTFT EF ExTFT
150,000 40,000 7
105,042 30000 { 27254 28,948
100000 7 98362
20,000 -
50,000 7
10,000 -
0 0
2018 2019 2018 2019
Profit Attributable US$’000 Basic and US cents
to Shareholders ETF T Diluted |l
of the Company 25 000 - Earnings 10 -
A B AR F 21,164 Per Share 8.35
20,000 4 SREXR s
15,800 #EEF 6.24
15,000 1 6 -
10,000 A 4
5,000 2
0 0
2018 2019 2018 2019

Remarksfffi ik
* Based on the profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares and
convertible preference shares in issue during the year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

GROUP RESULTS

The Group has two lines of businesses: biochemical business and
industrial business. The biochemical business, which focuses on
the manufacture and sale of chlortetracycline (“CTC”) products
and is carried on by Group subsidiaries, accounts for all of the
Group’s consolidated revenue. The industrial business comprises the
Group’s interests in its joint venture ECI Metro Investment Co.,
Ltd. (together with its subsidiaries, “ECI Metro”) and its associate
Zhanjiang Deni Vehicle Parts Co., Ltd. (together with its subsidiaries,
“Zhanjiang Deni”). The results of the Group’s industrial business are
incorporated in the statement of comprehensive income as share of

profits from joint venture and associate.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s revenue grew
12.5% to US$105.04 million (2018: US$93.36 million). Overall, gross
profit margin was 27.6% (2018: 29.2%).

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company was US$15.80
million versus US$21.16 million in 2018. The main reason was a

decrease in share of profit from ECI Metro.

Basic and diluted earnings per share were both US 6.24 cents (2018:
US 8.35 cents). The board has resolved not to declare a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Biochemical

We generate the bulk of our revenue from the manufacture and sale of
CTC products — CTC Premix and CTC HCL. CTC products are used
as feed additives to promote healthy growth of livestock, prevent or
cure animal diseases and improve overall feed efficiency. The Group’s
overseas customers include feed mills, pharmaceutical companies and

trading companies, whereas customers in China are mainly feed mills.

The Group’s biochemical revenue increased 12.5% to US$105.04
million (2018: US$93.36 million). Revenue contribution from China,
Asia Pacific (excluding China), North America, Europe and elsewhere
were 40.3%, 27.1%, 11.9%, 11.0% and 9.7%, respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENMR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Biochemical (continued)

For the year under review, China — which remained the biggest of our
markets — was experiencing an outbreak of African swine fever. As a
result, there was a sizable reduction in swine population, decreasing
the demand for CTC products. Therefore, domestic sales were lower
compared to the previous year. We increased our sales effort in the
overseas market to lessen the pressure from reduced demand in China.
Asia Pacific (excluding China) and Europe were the major revenue

growth drivers in the overseas market segment.

While competition remained intense, the Group managed to raise
average selling price of our products, mitigating substantially the
negative effects from higher environmental compliance costs. Average
selling price of CTC premix, our main revenue contributor, increased
by approximately 5.6% in 2019 when compared to 2018, and the
average selling price of CTC HCL also grew 1.3%.

Gross profit margin decreased from 29.2% in 2018 to 27.6% in 2019.
Profitability of our CTC products remained solid. But the trading
of animal health products, which recorded an increase in revenue

contribution in 2019, had a lower margin.

The Company announced the relocation of the production facilities
of Zhumadian Huazhong Chia Tai Co., Ltd. (the “Relocation”) on 17
November 2016. The Relocation is to comply with Zhumadian’s urban
development plans and is expected, at this stage, to be completed in
the first half of 2020. A net gain attributable to shareholders of the
Company of approximately US$11.5 million would be recorded upon

completion of the Relocation.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Industrial

The Group’s industrial business is conducted through ECI Metro and
Zhanjiang Deni.

ECI Metro is principally engaged in the sale, leasing and servicing
of Caterpillar machinery equipment in western China. According to
the National Bureau of Statistics of the PRC, fixed-asset investment
growth was 5.4% in China in 2019, the slowest annual growth since
the data become available in 1998. In particular, infrastructure
investment growth was only 3.8%. In ECI Metro’s operating region
of western China, intense competition also dampened its business
performance. For the year ended 31 December 2019, our share of
profits of joint venture declined to US$11.62 million from US$17.97
million in 2018.

Zhanjiang Deni is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
automotive parts, which are mainly sold to automobile and motorcycle
manufacturers. According to the China Association of Automobile
Manufacturers, motorcycle sales recorded a year-on-year increase of
10.0% in 2019 and automobile sales was 8.2% lower than 2018. For
the year ended 31 December 2019, our share of profits of associate was
US$1.92 million (2018: US$1.88 million).

OUTLOOK

Our biochemical business is expected to face strong headwinds in
2020. As mentioned above, the African swine fever outbreak in
China has drastically reduced the swine population, slashing the
demand for CTC and other animal health as well as animal nutrition
products. Moreover, effective as from 1 January 2020, the Ministry of
Agriculture and Rural Affairs of the PRC has banned the production
of antibiotics being used as growth promoters for animals in China.
As a sizeable portion of our revenue is derived from the sales of
antibiotics for animals in China, our biochemical business is expected

to be adversely affect by this ban.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENMR DN

OUTLOOK (continued)

Fixed-asset investment growth in China slowed down in 2019 and
is expected to continue in the coming quarters. Consequently, our
industrial business — notably ECI Metro — faces an uncertain future in
2020.

Furthermore, the COVID-19 outbreak has brought about additional
uncertainties in the Group’s operating environment in China. Whilst
the Group has put in place contingency measures to lower the impact

to its business operations, some disruptions have been unavoidable.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had total assets of US$292.7
million, an increase of 9.3% as compared to US$267.7 million as at 31
December 2018.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had net cash, being cash less
bank borrowings, of US$21.8 million (31 December 2018: US$41.8

million).

All the borrowings of the Group are denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”) as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s fixed interest rate bank
borrowings amounted to US$2.9 million (31 December 2018: nil).

All domestic sales in mainland China are transacted in RMB and
export sales are transacted in foreign currencies. The Group monitors
exchange rate movements and determines appropriate hedging

activities when necessary.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group finances its working capital requirements through a
combination of funds generated from operations and borrowings. The
Group had cash and cash equivalents of US$37.8 million as at 31
December 2019, a decrease of US$15.6 million compared to US$53.4
million as at 31 December 2018.
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CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, out of the total borrowings of US$16.0
million (31 December 2018: US$11.6 million) obtained by the Group,
US$13.1 million (31 December 2018: US$11.6 million) was secured
and such amount accounted for 82.0% (31 December 2018: 100.0%)
of the total borrowings. Certain of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and land lease prepayments with an aggregate net book
value of US$11.0 million (31 December 2018: US$11.6 million) were
pledged as security.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any significant

contingent liabilities.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save for those disclosed in this annual report, there were no other
significant investments held nor material acquisitions or disposals

during the year.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed around 800 employees
in the PRC and Hong Kong. The Group remunerates its employees
based on their performance, experience and prevailing market
conditions while performance bonuses are granted on a discretionary
basis. Other employee benefits include, for example, medical

insurance and training.
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Corporate Governance Report

TRERBRS

Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited (the “Company”
and together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is committed to
maintaining strict corporate governance standards. The principles of
these standards are to uphold a high standard of ethics, transparency,
accountability and integrity in all aspects of business and to ensure
that affairs are conducted in accordance with applicable laws and

regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has applied the principles and complied with the
code provisions prescribed in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
throughout the year 2019.

THE BOARD

(a) Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”) comprises nine members, including
four executive directors, two non-executive directors and three

independent non-executive directors.

The biographical details of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) and the relationships among the Directors are set
out in the Biographical Details of Directors section on pages

30 to 33 of the annual report.
(b) Chairman and Chief Executive

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont is the Chairman of the Company.
Mr. Thirayut Phityaisarakul and Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi are
the Chief Executive Officers of the biochemical division and
the industrial division respectively. The roles of the Chairman
and the chief executives are distinct and separate with a
clear division of responsibilities. The Chairman is responsible
for overseeing the function of the Board while the Chief
Executive Officers are responsible for managing the Company’s

business.
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THE BOARD (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Roles and Responsibilities

The Board, directly and through its committees, leads
and provides direction for the management by laying
down strategies and overseeing their implementation by
the management, reviews the operational and financial
performance, provides oversight to ensure that a sound system
of risk management and internal control is in place, and

performs corporate governance functions.

The non-executive Directors (including the independent
non-executive Directors) provide advisory as well as checks
and balances for effective and constructive contribution to
the Board to safeguard interests of the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) and the Company as a whole.

The management is responsible for execution of business

strategies and dealing with day-to-day operations.
Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers that all independent non-executive Directors are

independent.
Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions, which is based on the required standard set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules — Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, as the
code of conduct for dealings in the Company’s securities by its
directors. All Directors have responded to a specific enquiry
by the Company and confirmed that they complied with the
required standard set out in the Code of Conduct for Securities

Transactions during 2019.
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THE BOARD (continued)

)

(9)

Continuous Professional Development

During 2019, all of the Directors, being Mr. Soopakij
Chearavanont, Mr. Thirayut Phityaisarakul, Mr. Thanakorn
Seriburi, Mr. Nopadol Chiaravanont, Mr. Chawalit Na
Muangtoun, Mr. Yoichi lkezoe, Mr. Surasak Rounroengrom,
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and Mr. Edward Ko Ming Tung,
participated in continuous professional development

respectively by one or more of the following:

o attended trainings organised by the Company and other

professional organisations;

o reviewed regulatory update for directors and monthly
updates on the financial performance and financial

position provided by the Company.

General Meeting, Board Meetings and Board
Committee Meetings

During 2019, the Company held one annual general meeting,
six Board meetings, three Audit Committee meetings,
two Remuneration Committee meetings, one Nomination
Committee meeting and two Corporate Governance

Committee meetings.

The Directors are expected to devote sufficient time and
attention to perform their duties and responsibilities.
According to the bye-laws of the Company, Directors can
attend board meetings in person or by means of telephone,

electronic or other communication facilities.
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General Meeting, Board Meetings and Board
Committee Meetings (continued)

The attendance of each Director at each of the meetings in

2019, by name, is set out in the following table:

A H
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Exg(A)

(9) RRAE EFEREFSSETHEZEES

& (&)

TRAA IR E SR T JUE LR
T Y R R

No. of meetings attended/held

HERE/ GRB kY
Annual Corporate
General Audit  Remuneration ~ Nomination ~ Governance
Meeting Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
Bt REER
kYN G EMEHE  BMZHE  RAZHE ZHE
Chairman and HFHFRR
Non-executive Director FHTEH
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont wE N 11 6/6 - - 11 -
Executive Directors A& %
M. Thirayut Phityaisarakul AU 01 6/6 - - - -
Mt. Thanakorn Seriburi B b 01 416 - 22 - -
Mr. Nopadol Chiaravanont AN A 01 416 - - - 12
Mr. Chawalit Na Muangtoun B i A
(appointed on (R=F—h4
18 February 2019) “RATABER) i 505 - - - 11
Non-executive Director FHGTEH
M. Yoichi Ikezoe i 11 6/6 - - - -
Independent BUFAEF
Non-executive Directors
Mr. Surasak Rounroengrom Surasak Rounroengrom & 1/1 6/6 33 22 1/1 -
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo WA 11 6/6 33 22 1/1 -
Mr. Edward Ko Ming Tung IR 1/1 6/6 33 1 - 1
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THE BOARD (continued)

(h)

Accountability and Audit

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance in

the annual and interim reports.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements, which give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group and the financial performance
and cash flows of the Group in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements
under Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The statement of
the auditor of the Company about responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report section on pages 54 to 60 of the annual

report.

The Board considers that, in preparing the financial
statements, the Group has applied appropriate accounting
policies that are adopted consistently and made judgements
and estimates that are reasonable, prudent and in accordance

with the applicable accounting standards.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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U]

Dividend Policy

The Company adopted the following dividend policy on 11
December 2018:

1. This dividend policy sets out the approach of the
Company on the declaration and payment of dividends
to the Shareholders.

2. The Board is responsible for considering and, if
appropriate, declaring any interim dividend or
recommending any final dividend to the Shareholders
for approval every year. Any approved dividends must

not exceed the amount recommended by the Board.

3. The declaration or recommendation of any dividend
will take into consideration the Company’s results of
operations and financial conditions, business strategy
and future development and any other factors that
the Board may deem relevant. No dividend shall be
declared or paid except out of the Company’s profits
and reserves lawfully available for distribution. The
payment of dividend is also subject to applicable laws
and regulations, including any applicable restrictions

under the Company’s Bye-laws.

4. Future declarations or recommendations of dividends
may or may not reflect the Company’s historical
declarations or recommendations of dividends and
will be at the absolute discretion of the Board. In
general, whilst the Company is in a growth stage,
the Board does not expect, in the absence of special

circumstances, to declare or recommend any dividend.

5. This dividend policy is subject to review by the Board
and may be amended by the Board.
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BOARD DELEGATION

The Board has delegated authority to the following four committees

which operate under defined terms of reference. The terms of

reference of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and

the Nomination Committee are available on the Company’s website.

The attendance of each committee member at each of the committee

meetings in 2019, by name, is set out on page 13 of the annual report.

(i)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman),

Mr. Surasak Rounroengrom and Mr. Edward Ko Ming Tung.

The Audit Committee is delegated by the Board with the
primary responsibility to provide independent oversight of the
Group’s financial reporting, risk management and internal
control systems. The Audit Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to perform its duties including support
from the Internal Audit Department, external auditor and
management, in reviewing the Group’s financial results,

material financial, operational and compliance controls.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year.
The following is a summary of the work done by the Audit
Committee in 2019:

o reviewed the annual report and the annual results
announcement for the year ended 31 December 2018,

and gave recommendation to the Board for approval;

o reviewed the report of the external auditor to the Audit

Committee for the year ended 31 December 2018;

° approved the 2019 audit fee;

o reviewed the risk management update of the Group;

o reviewed the internal audit reports of the Group;

° reviewed the interim report and the interim results

announcement for the six months ended 30 June 2019,

and gave recommendation to the Board for approval;
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U]

Audit Committee (continued)

o reviewed the report of the external auditor to the Audit
Committee for the six months ended 30 June 2019;

° reviewed the audit and non-audit services undertaken

by the external auditor; and

o reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management and

internal control systems.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed
the annual report and the annual results for the year ended 31
December 2019, and gave recommendation to the Board for

approval.

The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditor, and the
approval of the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor. To ensure external auditor’s independence,
the Audit Committee reviewed the audit and non-audit

services undertaken by the external auditor in 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the remuneration
paid by the Group to the external auditor is set out below:
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2019
B
(US$’000)
Category of Services IR s 2803 (F7LFIL)
Audit services T R 146
Review engagements and agreed-upon procedures TR S BT ERR R 51
197
Other services At IR 5 2
Total prakel 199
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BOARD DELEGATION (continued)

(i)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo (Chairman),
Mr. Surasak Rounroengrom and Mr. Edward Ko Ming Tung,
and an executive Director, Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi.

The Remuneration Committee is delegated by the Board
with the primary responsibilities, including to make
recommendations to the Board on remuneration policy and
structure for all directors as well as to consider and recommend

to the Board the remuneration packages of individual director.

The primary objective of the Remuneration Committee is
to ensure that the Company is able to attract, retain and
motivate high-caliber employees who are critical to the
success of the Company, thereby enhancing the value of the
Company to the Shareholders. The objective of the Company’s
remuneration policy is to maintain fair and competitive
packages based on business requirements and industry

practices.

During 2019, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings
to consider and recommend to the Board the remuneration
packages of individual director and other remuneration

matters.

Details of emoluments of each Director are set out in note 9 to

the financial statements of the annual report.
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BOARD DELEGATION (continued)

(iif)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of a non-executive
Director, Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont (Chairman) and
two independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Surasak

Rounroengrom and Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo.

The Nomination Committee is delegated by the Board with
the primary responsibilities to formulate and implement
the nomination policy and board diversity policy, make
recommendations to the Board on selection of individual
nominated for directorship and assess the independence of

independent non-executive Directors.

All non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors are appointed for a successive term of one year and
three years respectively and, together with all other Directors,
are subject to retirement by rotation, but may offer themselves
for re-election at annual general meetings in accordance
with the Company’s bye-laws. According to the Company’s
bye-laws, at each annual general meeting of the Company, no
less than one-third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at

least once every three years.

During 2019, the Nomination Committee held one meeting to

review the Board composition.

Subsequent to the year end, the Nomination Committee
reviewed the independence of all independent non-executive
Directors and recommended to the Board to propose the
re-election of the retiring Directors to the Shareholders at the

annual general meeting in 2020.
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BOARD DELEGATION (continued)

(iif)

Nomination Committee (continued)

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy to set
out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse board to strengthen its effectiveness and governance.
Board appointments are based on meritocracy. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity considerations,
which include but are not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The Nomination Committee,
in carrying out its duties, will also take into account the

Company’s corporate strategy and organisational needs.
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Board Diversity Profile

HFFLulbin
Number of Directors
EE YN 1 2 3 4 5 6 8 9
Gender Male
T B
Designation Executive Director Non-executive Director Independent Non-executive Director
Tkt PUTHES FPATHES BTG
Age Group 50-59 60-69 >70
SEBRALN -
Expertise and Experience Management aﬁfdc;lil::[i::i Legal
S Je S 1 P d [y
%%%u:&*ﬂnéﬁ% Eb@ @ﬁffﬂﬁﬁ]{ {2513

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

- - hFEF§




CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
E X f&© ¥ B AR 2 A

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

BOARD DELEGATION (continued) EEERE R

(iii) Nomination Committee (continued) (i) RBEZEEE(H)
The Company adopted the following nomination policy on 11 KAFRR ZF—NETHT—HHEMNUT
December 2018: RABUR -
1 Purpose 1 H
1.1 The Nomination Committee of the Company 1.1 AKAGRRBTZEGEEAEY O KR
has the primary responsibility of identifying LA A B M5 N B B 3 DU
and nominating suitably qualified candidates to BRI 22 Bem B A T A -
become Directors (to fill casual vacancies and as
new Board members).
1.2 This nomination policy sets out the approach 1.2 AR $ 4 SR ) 5 TR TR A R % ik s

with respect to the selection and nomination
of candidates for directorship of the Company
so as to ensure that the Board has a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business for the Board to consider and, if
appropriate, appoint as additional Directors or as
Directors to fill casual vacancies, as the case may
be, or make recommendations to the Shareholders

for election as Directors at general meetings.
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BOARD DELEGATION (continued)

(iii) Nomination Committee (continued)

2 Selection Criteria, Eligibility and Documentary
Requirements
2.1 The Nomination Committee may select

2.2

suitably qualified candidates to nominate to the
Board from such resources as the Nomination
Committee considers appropriate, including
through referrals by members of the Board,
by the management of the Company and
by external professional agencies and other

resources.

The Nomination Committee shall consider the
factors listed below, together with any other
factors as the Nomination Committee may
consider appropriate, in assessing the suitability

of any candidate:

character, reputation and integrity;

- qualifications, accomplishments and

experience;

- capacity to devote sufficient time to
discharge duties amidst other significant

commitments;

- effect on the diversity of the Board,
including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background,
professional and industry experience,

skills and expertise knowledge;

- (where the proposed candidate is
being considered as a candidate
for an Independent Non-executive
Director position) ability to fulfil the
independence requirements under the

Listing Rules; and

- potential contributions to the Board and

any other relevant factors.
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(iif)

Nomination Committee (continued)

2 Selection Criteria, Eligibility and Documentary

Requirements (continued)

2.2

2.3

(continued)

The list of factors stated above is for reference
only and not intended to be exhaustive or
definitive. The Nomination Committee shall
assess all relevant factors with a view to
achieve the Company’s corporate strategy and
organisational needs and has the discretion to

nominate any person as it considers appropriate.

The candidates shall timely provide such
information and documents relating to their
nomination as the Nomination Committee
or the Board may request, including but not
limited to any such information as is required
for disclosure under the Listing Rules and their
written consent to be elected as Directors and to

the public disclosure of their information.

3 Nomination Rules and Procedures

3.1

3.2

The Secretary of the Nomination Committee
shall call a meeting of the Nomination
Committee and in advance of the meeting
invite nomination of candidates from members
of the Board, if any, for consideration by the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee may put forward other candidates
irrespective of whether such candidates have

been nominated by members of the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall, upon receipt
of all necessary information relating to the
candidates, evaluate each of such candidates
at the meeting based on the criteria set out in
Section 2 above to determine whether to make

a nomination to the Board.
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Nomination Committee (continued)

Nomination Rules and Procedures (continued)

3.3 The number of candidates nominated by the
Nomination Committee may exceed the number
of casual vacancies or vacancies for Director’s
appointment by the Board or at the general
meeting.

3.4 The Board shall have the final decision on

all matters relating to the appointment of

candidates as Directors and its recommendation
of candidates to stand for election at any

general meeting.

3.5 Any proposed candidate is entitled to withdraw
his/her candidature at any time before the
meeting of the Board at which his appointment
is to be considered or the general meeting at
which he/she is to stand for election by serving

a notice in writing to the Company.
Confidentiality

Unless required by law or any regulatory authority,
under no circumstances may a member of the
Nomination Committee disclose any information to the
public with regard to any nomination or candidature
whilst such information has not been disclosed by the

Company to the public.
Review

The Nomination Committee will review this
nomination policy from time to time, as appropriate,
and discuss any revisions that may be considered
appropriate, including to ensure that it remains
relevant to the Company’s needs and reflects both
current regulatory requirements and good corporate
governance practice, and recommend them to the

Board for approval.
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BOARD DELEGATION (continued)

(iif)

(iv)

Nomination Committee (continued)

6 Disclosure of Policy

The nomination policy may be disclosed in such
manner as the Board considers appropriate and in
compliance with any applicable regulatory requirements

or guidelines.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee consists of an
independent non-executive Director, Mr. Edward Ko Ming
Tung (Chairman) and two executive Directors, Mr. Nopadol

Chiaravanont and Mr. Chawalit Na Muangtoun.

The Corporate Governance Committee is delegated by
the Board with the primary responsibilities to review the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
the compliance with the Code of Conduct for Securities
Transactions, and the compliance with the Corporate

Governance Code.

During 2019, the Corporate Governance Committee held
two meetings to review the Company’s compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code for the year ended 31 December
2018 and for the six months ended 30 June 2019, respectively.

Subsequent to the year end, the Corporate Governance
Committee completed the review of the Company’s
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

A H

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

EEEREE

(iii)

(iv)

REZEE ()
6 9% B3R

AR BOR AT AL 4 Y
7 3N A o g P G A Y R g
514 H 5% o

TXERZES

EERZRTH - ABI R E R Y
WoeA: () A 4 PuA # F A8 A e

ERERZTRGHESGEME > ERATR
o A2 A B A S A IR BOR W B - M K B
S P R SRR - AR AT
P R B AR R T T RO B R Y Gl
77 58 Sy AT 2 5 U A I D0 A A (A SR A IR
EUDRIE RV

REF—NF > SEERZEGEM T K
gH S UEFEMLNEE 2 - N\E+2A
Et+—HIEFREARBE_F—LENHA
Z+H kA H R A A w) A (A R
HIY 155 L o

AR RS AR > AR T B 050 R
FER-METHA=ZT—HIEEEARAH
AT (A SRR ST R RS

- - hFEF§

25



26

CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

E X &© ¥ H

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Our Approach

The Group has established and adopted a risk management policy
which is designed to manage the risk of failure associated with
the Group while achieving its business objectives and to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss. A risk appetite statement has been established to define
the extent of risks that the Group is willing to take in pursuit of its

strategies and business objectives.

Clear roles and responsibilities are assigned to different level of
management within the Group. The Board acknowledges that it is
responsible for the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The Board also (i) oversees the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems
and (ii) evaluates and determines the nature and extent of risks it
is willing to take in achieving the Group’s business objectives. The
Board delegates the responsibility of reviewing the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems to the
Audit Committee, which monitors the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems through the Internal Audit Department. The
Internal Audit Department carries out independent review of key
business processes and controls, key findings and recommendations
for improvement are regularly reported to the Audit Committee.
The external auditor also reports any control issues which have
been identified in the course of audit or review work to the Audit
Committee. Management is responsible for designing, implementing
and monitoring risk management and internal control systems,
whereas risk owners appointed by the management are responsible
for identifying, analysing and prioritising risk issues for further
consideration by management, and ensuring that the risk monitoring
and control system are working effectively and risk mitigation actions

are implemented timely within business units.
Effectiveness Review

In 2019, the Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board, conducted an
annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems. The Board considers that the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group are effective
and adequate. The Board also considers that the Group has adequate
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget for accounting, internal audit and financial reporting

functions.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Continuous Improvement

We are committed to continually improve our risk management
and internal control framework and will continue to enhance the
integration of risk management and internal control into our business

process.

For handling and dissemination of inside information, an inside
information handling policy is in place to enable the Group to handle
inside information in accordance with legal requirements and, where
required, communicate with the Group’s stakeholders in a timely

manner.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening a Special General Meeting by Shareholders

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, the Board may, whenever
it thinks fit, convene a special general meeting, and special general
meetings shall also be convened on requisition, as provided by the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as the same may from time to
time be amended) (the “Companies Act”), and, in default, may be

convened by the requisitionists.

Pursuant to the Companies Act, at the date of the deposit of the
requisition, members holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company can submit a written requisition to the

Board for convening a special general meeting.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office of
the Company.

If the Board fails to proceed duly to convene a meeting within
twenty-one days from the date of the deposit of the requisition, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of

three months from the date of the written requisition.

Such meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened in
the same manner as that in which meetings are to be convened by the
Board. At least 14 clear days’ notice in writing (and not less than 10

business days) shall be given to all members of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

To Make Enquiry to the Board

The Shareholders can make enquiry to the Board by writing to the

principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong.
To Put Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, any number of members of the
Company representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all the members having at the date of the requisition a right
to vote at the meeting to which the requisition relates, or not less
than one hundred members, can submit a written requisition to the

Board for putting forward proposals at general meetings.

The requisition must state the resolution with a statement of not more
than one thousand words with respect to the matter referred to in any
proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting

and the requisition must be signed by the requisitionists.

The requisition must be deposited at the registered office of the
Company no less than six weeks before the meeting in the case
of the requisition requiring notice of a resolution or no less than
one week before the meeting in case of any other requisition. The
requisitionists must deposit a sum of money reasonably sufficient to
meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the resolution

and circulating the statement to all members of the Company.
To Propose a Person for Election as a Director

Members of the Company (other than the person to be proposed) who
are qualified to attend and vote at general meetings of the Company
can submit a written requisition to the Board to propose a person for

election as a director of the Company at such general meetings.

The requisition must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited,
with a notice signed by the nominated candidate of his/her willingness
to be elected and the candidate’s information required to be disclosed
under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and a written consent from
the nominated candidate to the publication of his/her personal data,
at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and ending no later than seven

days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Details of the procedures for proposing a person for election as a

director are available on the Company’s website.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy
setting out the principles in relation to communication with the
Shareholders, with the objective of maintaining full, open and
timely communication with the Shareholders. Information would
be communicated to the Shareholders in a timely manner, mainly
through the publication of the Company’s corporate communications
including interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars.

These publications are available on the Company’s website.

In 2019, the Company did not make any changes to its constitutional

documents.
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Biographical Details of Directors
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Mr.
a Non-executive Director and the Chairman of the Nomination

Soopakij Chearavanont, aged 55, has been the Chairman,

Committee of the Company since September 2014. He obtained a
Bachelor of Science degree from the College of Business and Public
Administration of New York University, USA and has extensive
multinational investment and management experience in various
industries. Mr. Chearavanont is also the chairman of Charoen
Pokphand Group Company Limited, a director and the chairman of
CP ALL Public Company Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange of Thailand), an executive director and the chairman of
C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (“CPP”, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange), an executive director and chairman of C.P.
Lotus Corporation (“C.P. Lotus”) (which was a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange until its withdrawal from listing
effective on 29 October 2019) and a non-executive director of Ping
An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd. (a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock
Exchange). More recently, Mr. Chearavanont became a director and
the chairman of Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited
(a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand) on 24 April
2019 and 10 May 2019, respectively. Mr. Chearavanont resigned as
a director of True Corporation Public Company Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand) on 13 June 2019.

Mr. Thirayut Phityaisarakul, aged 77, has been the Chief Executive
Officer (Biochemical Division) and an Executive Director of the
Company since September 2014. He is also a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company and a senior vice chairman of Charoen
Pokphand Group. Mr. Phityaisarakul has extensive management

experiences in various industries.

Mr.

Company since February 1988. He was designated as an Executive

Thanakorn Seriburi, aged 74, has been a Director of the

Director of the Company and appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer (Industrial Division) and a member of the Remuneration
Committee in September 2014. He is a director of several subsidiaries
of the Company and a senior vice chairman of Charoen Pokphand
Group. He has been working on investment projects for Charoen
Pokphand Group in the PRC since 1979 and has extensive experience

in industrial operations in Asia and elsewhere.
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Mr. Nopadol Chiaravanont, aged 58, has been a Director of the
Company since July 2014 and was designated as an Executive
Director of the Company in September 2014. Mr. Chiaravanont was
appointed as a member of the Corporate Governance Committee
in December 2017. He is a director of a subsidiary of the Company.
Mr. Chiaravanont is also the assistant to chairman of Charoen
Pokphand Group Company Limited, the vice chairman of the
automotive and industrial business group (China) of Charoen
Pokphand Group Company Limited and a director of CPPC Public
Co., Ltd.

Mr.
Executive Director of the Company and a member of the Corporate

Chawalit Na Muangtoun, aged 53, was appointed as an

Governance Committee on 18 February 2019. He is currently a senior
executive of the Group primarily responsible for the management of
the Group’s biochemical business in China. Mr. Na Muangtoun also
holds directorships in several companies within the Group. Mr. Na
Muangtoun has been working for the Group since 1992. Mr. Na
Muangtoun received a Bachelor degree in Accounting from Payap
University in Thailand in 1989.

Mr. Yoichi Ikezoe, aged 60, has been a Non-executive Director of
the Company since October 2015. Mr. Ikezoe is also a non-executive
director of CPP. Mr. lkezoe is currently the Senior Officer for Asia
and Oceania Bloc, CP and CITIC (Overseas Operation) of ITOCHU
Corporation (a company listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange) and
Chairman of ITOCHU Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Ikezoe has been
working for ITOCHU Corporation (formerly known as C.ITOH &
Co., Ltd.) since 1983. He received his Bachelor of Arts degree from
the Faculty of Foreign Studies, Osaka University in Japan in 1983.

Mr. Surasak Rounroengrom, aged 66, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company and a member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee since September 2014. Mr. Rounroengrom obtained
a Bachelor of Science degree from Royal Thai Naval Academy,
Thailand, in February 1977. Throughout his career with the Royal
Thai Navy, Mr. Rounroengrom held various positions. He was the
48th Commander-in-Chief of the Royal Thai Navy from October
2011 to September 2013 before he retired from the Thai armed
forces. He was the Supreme Commander Advisor from January 2014
to September 2014 and was a National Legislative Assembly Member
from August 2014 to May 2019. Mr. Rounroengrom is currently an
independent director and the chairman of Ekachai Medical Care

Public Company Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange of
Thailand).
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Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo, aged 59, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company, the chairman of the Audit
Committee and of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of Nomination Committee since September 2014. Mr. Cheng
obtained a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree in Accounting from
University of Kent, the United Kingdom in 1983 and a Master of
Science (Economics) degree, majoring in Accounting and Finance
from London School of Economics and Political Science, the United
Kingdom in 1984. He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, and a member of the Institute of
Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada. Mr. Cheng has over
20 years of expertise in accounting, finance and corporate advisory

services.

Mr. Cheng is currently an independent non-executive director
of CSI Properties Limited, Chong Hing Bank Limited, HKC
(Holdings) Limited, Goldbond Group Holdings Limited, CPMC
Holdings Limited, Liu Chong Hing Investment Limited, Top Spring
International Holdings Limited, DTXS Silk Road Investment
Holdings Company Limited, Kidsland International Holdings Limited,
Miricor Enterprises Holdings Limited (each a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange) and Somerley Capital Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange).
More recently, Mr. Cheng resigned as an independent non-executive
director of C.P. Lotus on 28 October 2019. Mr. Cheng was appointed

as an independent non-executive director of CPP on 1 January 2020.
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Mr. Edward Ko Ming Tung, aged 59, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee and of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company since September 2014
and the chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee since
December 2017. Mr. Ko obtained an external Bachelor of Laws Degree
from the University of London in the United Kingdom in 1986 and is
a member of The Law Society of Hong Kong. Mr. Ko is the principal
of Messrs. Edward Ko & Company and has been practising as a

solicitor in Hong Kong for more than 28 years.

Mr. Ko is currently an independent non-executive director of Sinofert
Holdings Limited, Wai Chun Group Holdings Limited, EverChina
Int’l Holdings Company Limited and Sterling Group Holdings
Limited (each a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange). Mr. Ko was previously an independent non-executive
director of Chinese Energy Holdings Limited (a company listed on the
GEM Board of the Stock Exchange). More recently, Mr. Ko resigned
as an independent non-executive director of Zioncom Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange)
on 1 January 2020.

RELATIONSHIPS AMONG DIRECTORS

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont is a cousin of Mr. Nopadol Chiaravanont.
Mr. Thirayut Phityaisarakul and Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi are brothers.
Save as disclosed above, there is no other material relationship among

members of the Board.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Various businesses and functions of the Company are respectively
under the direct responsibilities of the Executive Directors who are

regarded as senior management of the Company.
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Report of the Directors
EERFTE

The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
chlortetracycline (“CTC”) products. Additionally, the Group is also
involved, through its joint venture and its associated company, in
the trading of machinery and the manufacture and sale of automotive

parts.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review with financial key performance indicators analysis
and future development of the Group is set out in the Chairman’s
Statement section on pages 2 to 3, Financial Highlights section on
page 4 and Management Discussion and Analysis section on pages 5

to 9 of the annual report.

The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, a discussion
on the environmental policies and performance, compliance with laws
and regulations and the key relationships with stakeholders are set out

below.

For further information about the environmental and social
performance of the Group for this financial year, please refer to the

Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2019 to be issued.

Save as disclosed herein, the Directors are not aware of any important
event affecting the Group since the end of the financial year under

review.
Principal Risks and Uncertainties
Principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group are discussed

below. Details of the Group’s financial risk management are set out in

note 34 to the financial statements of the annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Reliance on Key Products

Sales of CTC Premix account for a substantial portion of the Group’s
revenue. Any factors adversely affecting the pricing of, demand for,
consumer preferences for, regulatory requirements of, or market
acceptance of CTC Premix, including any increase in competition,
change in government regulatory requirements, negative findings
or publicity on the effects of CTC Premix, could cause the Group’s
revenue to decline and the Group’s business and future operating

results to suffer.
Volatility of Commodity Prices

The principal raw materials used to manufacture CTC products are
corn starch, yeast, peanut meal and soybean meal. The availability
and prices of the necessary raw materials may be adversely affected
by factors beyond the Group’s control, such as weather conditions,

natural disasters or a sudden surge in demand.

If the supply of raw materials is disrupted to a material degree or if
there is a substantial increase in the prices of raw materials, and the
Group is not able to purchase the same raw materials of the same
quality from alternative suppliers at competitive prices or to transfer
such material price increase to customers, the Group’s financial
condition and operating results may be materially and adversely
affected. Management will set a safety stock level and continuously
collect and analyse the commodity prices information when

purchasing these raw materials.
Market Competition
The Group faces intense competition from other CTC producers.

New players may also enter the market, competing with the Group’s

existing clients and negatively impacting the Group’s market share.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Product Liability

If the Group’s products fail to perform as expected, or prove to
be defective or result in accidents, personal injuries, casualties or
financial losses to customers, the Group may be subject to liability
claims for damages. If products do not meet the specifications and
requirements requested by customers, or if any of the Group’s products
are defective, such defects or any complaints or negative publicity
resulting therefrom could result in decreased sales of the Group’s
products, and the Group may also be subject to product liability claims
and litigation. The Group’s internal quality control team oversees
quality assurance controls and systems throughout the production

proces S.
Licenses and Permits

In accordance with applicable PRC laws and regulations, the Group
is required to obtain and maintain various licences and permits in
order to commence and operate our business. In addition, in order to
export and sell CTC products overseas, the Group needs to obtain
various government approvals and comply with applicable standards
in relation to production processes, premises and CTC products in the

countries where the Group sell CTC products.

Although the Group currently has the necessary licences and permits,
the eligibility criteria for such licences and permits may change
from time to time and may become more stringent. In addition, new
requirements for the grant or renewal of such licences and permits
may come into effect in the future. The introduction of any such new
and/or more stringent laws or regulations may significantly escalate
the compliance and maintenance costs or may limit or even prohibit
the Group to continue its existing operations or expand its business.
Management continuously keeps abreast of regulatory changes in the

relevant laws and regulations on licenses and permits.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Outbreak of COVID-19

The outbreak of COVID-19 at the beginning of 2020 has brought
about uncertainties in the Group’s operating environment in China.
The market conditions and measures implemented in China have,
and potentially may, in various degrees affect different aspects of
the Groups businesses. Examples include delay in raw material
supply, workforce availability due to people movement and transport
restrictions, revised production plans due to additional COVID-19
precautionary measures, outbound logistical delays on our products to
customers, business visits and market demand for our products. The
Group will continue to monitor the situation so as to seek and adopt
appropriate measures in order to minimize the impact of COVID-19

on our business and operations.
Environmental Compliance

Our CTC production is required to comply with applicable
environmental protection laws and regulations in the PRC which
govern the standards of air pollution, waste water discharge and
noise emissions. Local PRC government and authorities generally
have the authority delegated by relevant laws and regulations to
impose penalties on companies failing to comply with the relevant

environmental protection laws and regulations.

In addition to the existing environmental protection laws and
regulations, the PRC government may promulgate new and stricter
environmental protection laws and regulations in the biochemical
industry in the future which may apply to the Group. As a result,
compliance with such legal requirements will become more
burdensome and we may incur additional costs in production process
and operations, which may ultimately adversely affect production and
results of operations. Safety, Health and Environmental Committee
of the Group oversees relevant environmental policies affecting the

Group’s operation.
Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group cares about environmental protection. We have devoted
significant operating and financial resources to ensure that our
production complies with environmental protection laws and
regulations in the PRC. In 2019, there was no incidence of non-
compliance with the relevant environmental laws and regulations that

have a significant impact on the Group.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group strives to comply in all material aspects with the relevant
laws and regulations which are regarded as having a significant impact
on the Group, and has not come across incidence of material breach

or non-compliance during 2019.
Key Relationships with Stakeholders
Employees

We highly value our talents and are committed to provide a safe work
environment to our employees. The Group remunerates its employees
based on their performance, experience and prevailing market rates
while performance bonuses are granted on a discretionary basis.
Other employee benefits include, for example, medical insurance and
training. We also ensure our recruitment policies are in compliance
with national regulations in the areas of equal opportunity and

anti-discrimination.

We have in place safety guidelines and operating manuals setting
out safety measures for the production processes. In accordance with
applicable laws and regulations in China, we provide our employees
with training programs on work safety including trainings on safe
usage of chemicals and machineries, accident prevention and
management. We also conduct regular inspections on our machineries

to ensure compliance with safety standards.
Customers

We strive to provide products of the highest quality to our customers.
Our operations are certified with ISO 9001, GMP and we have
stringent internal quality control procedures in place. We have set
up our own laboratories to conduct product testing as part of our
internal quality assurance. To monitor our customers’ satisfaction, the
Group’s sales teams listen to customers’ needs and opinions. With the
continuous feedback of our customers, we will continue to improve

our product and service qualities.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Key Relationships with Stakeholders (continued)
Suppliers

The Group has set up supplier management policies in accordance
with the laws and regulations in the PRC to monitor the supplier
selection process. The quality of incoming materials is ensured under a
well-established control process in our production plants. We carefully
choose suppliers that share the same commitment to product quality
and work ethics with us. In our procurement process, suppliers are
evaluated based on a number of assessment criteria, including their
service quality, environmental and social performances, and ability to
supply high-quality products on a consistent basis. We also perform
on-site inspections of suppliers as and when necessary to ensure our

requirements are met.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s financial performance for the year ended 31 December
2019 and the financial position of the Group at that date are set out

in the financial statements on pages 61 to 150 of the annual report.

The Board has resolved not to declare a dividend for the year ended
31 December 2019.

The register of members holding ordinary shares of the Company will
be closed from 2 June 2020 to 5 June 2020, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of ordinary shares of the Company will be
registered. In order to ascertain the Shareholders’ eligibility to attend
and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
to be held on 5 June 2020, all transfer forms for ordinary shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration before 4:30 p.m. on 1 June 2020.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The consolidated assets, liabilities and results of the Group for the
five years ended 31 December 2019, as extracted from the published

audited financial statements, are as follows:

MBERME
ARG E R JUE+ A S BT AR
W £ E > BB R SR (I 8K ) LT RO RO L
B W) 0

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

e = VG ST Y i S

Us$000  US$000  US$000  US$000  USS000
Frntrx  Frtr Frtr  Frtr o FrTx

Total assets g E 292,657 267,712 229,701 200,043 198,972
Total liabilities AT 70,244 58,166 32,675 31,308 30,854
Non-controlling interests Fpe i e bl 25 23,224 23,784 23,047 20,219 19,304
Equity attributable to shareholders . NE S A
of the Company 199,189 185,762 173,979 148,516 148,814
292,657 267,712 229,701 200,043 198,972
Profit for the year attributable to AT A HE A i

shareholders of the Company

15,800 21,164 16,347 8,058 8,182

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 14

to the financial statements of the annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in issued shares of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 29 to the financial

statements of the annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to

offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During 2019, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 35 to the financial statements
and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the annual

report, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to US$18,626,000 (2018: US$15,694,000).

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations for charitable and other
purposes amounting to US$220,000 (2018: US$14,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Revenue attributable to the five largest customers accounted for less
than 30% of the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December
2019.

Purchases attributable to the largest supplier and the five largest
suppliers accounted for 12.9% and 38.6%, respectively, of the Group’s
purchases for the year ended 31 December 2019.

None of the Directors, their close associates or the Shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five

largest suppliers.
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EEREE

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:
CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Thirayut Phityaisarakul

Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi

Mr. Nopadol Chiaravanont

Mr. Chawalit Na Muangtoun
(appointed on 18 February 2019)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:
Mr. Yoichi Ikezoe

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Surasak Rounroengrom
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo
Mr. Edward Ko Ming Tung

All non-executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
are appointed for a successive term of one year and three years
respectively and, together with all other Directors, are subject to
retirement by rotation, but may offer themselves for re-election, at

annual general meetings in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws.

In accordance with the Company’s bye-law 99, Mr. Nopadol
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Chiaravanont (executive Director), Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and
Mr. Edward Ko Ming Tung (independent non-executive Directors)
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. Details of
each of the above retiring Directors proposed for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting are set out in the circular to the

Shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other

than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 9 to the

financial statements of the annual report.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined with reference to
Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of

the Group.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT AND
CONTRACT

Save for the transactions as disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” below and the related party
disclosures as disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements of the
annual report, none of the Directors or his/her connected entity had
any material interests, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement and contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries was a party during or at the year ended 31
December 2019.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the transactions as disclosed in the section headed
“Continuing Connected Transactions” below and the related party
disclosures as disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements of the
annual report, there had been no contract of significance between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” on
pages 48 and 49 of the annual report, at no time during the year was
the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company or any

other body corporate.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding in the Company’s

securities.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules — Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) are set out

below:

(a) Directors’ interests in shares of the Company (Long
Positions)
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(a) EBRAQITNER (FR)

Approximate
percentage of

Number of the issued ordinary

ordinary share capital

Name of director Capacity shares held of the Company

AR w8 AT

Jit i ¥ 7 ik W 228 JE B AR

HHAW 54y B4y H R ONERTidzA

Mr. Thirayut Phityaisarakul Beneficial owner 410,000 0.17%
ES 4 s g %7 ZSDN

Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi Beneficial owner 625,848 0.26%

ERBLEA A A
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF
THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS (continued)

(b) Directors’ interests in shares of associated
corporations of the Company (Long Positions)

A H

Report of the Directors
ESHREE

EERFTETBRAEREARRAARE AR
EENRD RAAERGER KK (F)

(b) EBRAAFTHNMEBEEOES (FR)

C.P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. NEEIEE R 2 ]

Approximate

percentage of the

issued share capital

Number of the associated

Name of director Capacity shares held corporation

A0 4 W 2

CEAT B A

HRAW 54y i ik oy O H R ONERidA

Mr. Thirayut Phityaisarakul Beneficial owner 41,000,000 0.17%
BRI E JEE X7 XS DN

Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi Beneficial owner 62,584,807 0.26%
BRI E JEE X7 ZCDN

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

B Lt e g4 > RR-UET A=+ —H
48 8 2 % U B AR ] 5 35 2468 ML E Pl AS A W M AE 2
O GC B > SO B A ) e A ) R O AR
Fir 8%t ARE A > BEEAT T A W) R B EATBA
B AR Ao ) s A W 3k P (3 i o % ) B R A9 SR XV
HR T S AE ) WY I B R B e T e A AT ] R 2
WA -

- - hFEF§

45



CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Report of the Directors

EEHRES

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
PERSONS WHO HAVE INTERESTS OR SHORT

E X &© ¥ 8 B &R D

POSITIONS WHICH ARE DISCLOSEABLE
UNDER THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES

ORDINANCE

As at 31 December 2019, the following persons (not being a director
or chief executive of the Company) had the following interests and
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as

recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant

to Section 336 of the SFO:

Bl

Number of shares

and underlying

FTERREBBEZRBEROAREAT
REEERZIXBNAL

PERJVETZAZ S H o WRRE R R
Bl 5336 Bl AE i AR 2 ) f A7 2 B aC i iRt 8% > T
FINL GEARAFRMEFREETHEANE) RAAFE
8 I o S A Rl I AT O R B SR T ANE

Approximate
percentage of the
issued ordinary

share capital

Name of shareholder Notes Capacity shares held of the Company
A2 )
R A By & CE AT ¥
g A Kt 84 HH R I 4y O H JBe A RE £ E 1y Lb
(Note 1) (Note 1)
(M#E1) (MiE1)
Charoen Pokphand Group (2) Interest of controlled corporation 127,748,147 (L) 53.1 (L)
Company Limited e i) 2 R 25
Charoen Pokphand Foods (2) Beneficial owner and interest of 127,748,147 (L) 53.1 (L)
Public Company Limited controlled corporation
B A N B de )k [ RE 2R
CPF Investment Limited (2) Beneficial owner 115,137,370 (L) 47.8 (L)
Ha R A
ITOCHU Corporation Beneficial owner 60,179,593 (L) 25.0 (L)

P A T b SR

HasA A
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
PERSONS WHO HAVE INTERESTS OR SHORT
POSITIONS WHICH ARE DISCLOSEABLE
UNDER THE SECURITIES AND FUTURES
ORDINANCE (continued)

Notes:

(1) The letter “L” denotes a long position.

(2) Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF”) held
127,748,147 shares and underlying shares of the Company, which
included (i) 12,610,777 preference shares beneficially owned by CPF
and (ii) 115,137,370 ordinary shares beneficially owned by CPF’s
wholly-owned subsidiary, CPF Investment Limited. Charoen Pokphand
Group Company Limited also declared its interest in these shares by

virtue of its shareholding interest in CPF.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, no person (not
being a director or chief executive of the Company) had an interest
or a short position in shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) on 18 March 2015. The Share Option Scheme will remain
in force for 10 years from the date of listing on 3 July 2015.

The Share Option Scheme was established for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible persons who contribute
to the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible persons of the Share
Option Scheme include the Company’s directors, senior executives,
employees of the Group and those persons that, in the opinion of the

Directors, have contributions or potential contributions to the Group.

The total number of ordinary shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
shall not in aggregate exceed 24,071,831 shares, being 10% of the
total number of ordinary shares of the Company in issue on the date of
listing on 3 July 2015.

The maximum number of ordinary shares issuable upon exercise of
share options granted under the Share Option Scheme was 24,071,831
ordinary shares, representing 10% of the issued ordinary shares of the

Company as at the date of this report.

The maximum number of ordinary shares issuable upon exercise of the
share options granted to each eligible person under the Share Option
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the ordinary
shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit is subject to the Shareholders’ approval in advance

in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive Directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any
of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the ordinary shares of the
Company in issue and with an aggregate value (based on the price of
the Company’s ordinary shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period, are subject to the Shareholders’

approval in advance in a general meeting.

The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by
the Directors but shall commence after the grant and end on a date
which is not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the share

options.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the Board,
but shall be at least the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s ordinary shares on the date of grant of the
share options; and (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of
the Company’s ordinary shares for the 5 trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant and (iii) the nominal value of the ordinary
share of the Company. Share options do not confer rights on the

holders to dividends or to vote at a general meeting.

As at the date of this report, no option had been granted, exercised,

cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had the following
continuing connected transactions that are subject to the Listing Rules’

reporting requirement for disclosure in the annual report.
CPP Master Purchase Agreement

On 30 October 2017, the Company entered into a master purchase
agreement with C. P. Pokphand Co. Ltd. (“CPP”) (the “2017
CPP Master Purchase Agreement”) for the supply of various
chlortetracycline and such animal drugs (including any antibiotics)
by the Group to CPP and its subsidiaries (the “CPP Group”). The
2017 CPP Master Purchase Agreement took effect on 1 January 2018
and would continue until 31 December 2020. The 2017 CPP Master
Purchase Agreement and the annual caps were approved by the

independent shareholders of the Company on 8 December 2017.

As at 30 October 2017, being the date of the Company’s
announcement, Charoen Pokphand Foods Public Company Limited
(“CPF”) was interested in approximately 47.8% of the issued ordinary
shares of the Company and was the controlling shareholder of the
Company. CPF was also interested in approximately 47.8% of the
issued share capital of CPP. Companies in the CPP Group were
associates of CPF and connected persons of the Company under
the Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under the 2017
CPP Master Purchase Agreement therefore constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the approved annual cap for
the transactions contemplated under the 2017 CPP Master Purchase
Agreement was US$4,100,000 and the actual sales recorded amounted
to US$3,006,000.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

HOEL Master Purchase Agreement

On 30 October 2017, the Company entered into a master purchase
agreement with High Orient Enterprises Limited (“HOEL”) (the
“2017 HOEL Master Purchase Agreement”) for the supply of various
chlortetracycline and animal drugs (including any antibiotics) by the
Group to HOEL and its associates, but excluding the CPP Group (the
“HOEL Group”). The 2017 HOEL Master Purchase Agreement took
effect on 1 January 2018 and would continue until 31 December 2020.
The 2017 HOEL Master Purchase Agreement and the annual caps
were approved by the independent shareholders of the Company on 8
December 2017.

As at 30 October 2017, being the date of the Company’s
announcement, HOEL was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Charoen
Pokphand Group Company Limited, which was treated as a
substantial shareholder of the Company and its subsidiaries and their
respective associates as connected persons of the Company within the
meaning of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the transactions under the
2017 HOEL Master Purchase Agreement were treated as if they were
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the approved annual cap for
the transactions contemplated under the 2017 HOEL Master Purchase
Agreement was US$3,500,000 and the actual sales recorded amounted
to US$2,829,000.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Listing Rules Compliance

The Internal Audit Department has reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and had no material findings of non-compliance

to report to the independent non-executive Directors.

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the
Group’s continuing connected transactions and have confirmed that
these continuing connected transactions were entered into (i) in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, (ii) on normal
commercial terms or better, and (iii) in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and

in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

In respect of the above continuing connected transactions, the
Company has complied with the relevant announcement, circular and
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules from time to time.

KPMG, the Company’s auditor, was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Rewviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
KPMG has issued an unqualified letter containing the findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above by the Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

Transaction with other related entities with the same shareholders
as CPG, which is disclosed as related party disclosures in note 33
to the financial statements of the annual report, does not fall under
the definition of connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction, or is fully exempt under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules

and thus is not disclosed above.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other transactions of the
Company which require disclosure in the annual report in accordance

with the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

The Directors were not aware that during the year ended 31
December 2019, any of the Directors had interest in any business
which competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group which falls to be disclosed under the
Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-law 178, every Director shall be

indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability

insurance for its Directors and officers.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Group, or existed

during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was

entered into or existed during the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company has applied the principles and complied with the
code provisions prescribed in the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the

Listing Rules throughout the year 2019.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors of the Company. The principal duties of the Audit
Committee include the review and supervision of the Company’s
financial reporting process, risk management and internal control.
The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s consolidated

financial statements prior to the publication of the final results.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that
the Company has maintained the amount of public float as required
under the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2019 and
up to the date of this report.

AUDITOR
KPMG will retire and a resolution for its re-appointment as auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Thanakorn Seriburi
Director

Hong Kong
9 April 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BB RS

KPMG!

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chia
Tai Enterprises International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 61 to 150,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2019, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the current year. These matters were

addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

X E B ER2A

Independent Auditor’s Report
B A% BUAT RS

FRETEH

IR B T TR AR R AN Y TSRV > R AR
A A R B R O T O o B SR IR
AE A 7 w0 A A S B e M L R R AT R
B o A TEE L FIHRE M BEHER

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do

not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies in note 2.4(n).

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from the sale of
biochemical products. The Group generally recognises
revenue when products are delivered to the customer’s
premises for domestic sales or in accordance with the terms
and conditions of sale for export sales.

The terms set out in the Group’s sales contracts relating to
goods acceptance by customers are varied. Accordingly, the
terms and conditions of sales contracts may affect the timing
of recognition of sales to customers as each sales contract
could have different terms relating to customer acceptance
of the goods sold.

We identified the recognition of revenue as a key audit
matter because revenue is one of the key performance
indicators of the Group and is, therefore, subject to an
inherent risk of manipulation by management to meet
targets or expectations and because errors in the recognition
of revenue could have a material impact on the Group’s
profit for the year.

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue
included the following:

° evaluating the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls
over the existence, accuracy and timing of revenue
recognition;

° challenging the revenue recognition policies adopted
by the Group by making inquiries of management and
inspecting a sample of sales contracts to understand
the delivery terms of the transactions and to assess the
Group’s timing of revenue recognition with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

° inspecting manual adjustments to revenue raised
during the reporting period which met specific risk-
based criteria, enquiring of management the reasons
for such adjustments and comparing the details of the
adjustments with relevant underlying documentation;

° assessing whether revenue had been recognised in
the appropriate accounting period by comparing
a sample of sales transactions around the year end
with relevant underlying documents, which included
customers’ signed acknowledgement of receipt (for
domestic sales) and bills of lading (for export sales);
and

° identifying significant sales returns from the
sales ledger after the year end and inspecting the
underlying documentation to assess if the related
adjustments to revenue had been accounted for in the
appropriate accounting period.
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Information other than the consolidated
financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in

the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting

process.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or

the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where

applicable, related safeguards.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Yu Wai Sum.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

30 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FmEeEZTEWE R

Year ended 31 December 2019 &RE - F—WE+H=+—HILF)E

2019 2018
ZE A ZER )N\
Note US$’000 US$’000
M it FFiL FLFo
REVENUE A 5 105,042 93,362
Cost of sales R N (76,094) (66,108)
Gross profit BF 28,948 27,254
Other income, net A e A 6 2,643 1,988
Selling and distribution costs 858 K Ay 8 AR (9,123) (7,061)
General and administrative expenses Tk S E (16,138) (17,208)
Finance costs T 7 AR 7 - -
Share of profits and losses of: JRE AW 96 1) B s 18 -
Joint venture HEAE 11,616 17,966
Associate W 2% A ) 18(b) 1,917 1,875
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 3 8 i ¥4 A 8 19,863 24,814
Income tax JREY 11 (1,841) (1,610)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR N | 18,022 23,204
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Al 2 v UK A
Items that may be reclassified 4% BT e & B4
subsequently to profit or loss: FHMGZHEE
Exchange differences related to translation S A7b b S S 7 0 5 W
of foreign operations HH B Z T 32, 75 0 (1,071) (4,248)
Share of other comprehensive income of: JRE A Ath A i U RS
Joint venture BB (1,383) (5,359)
Associate R/ | 18(b) (258) (1,077)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 7 45 G Alb A T WL i
FOR THE YEAR (2,712) (10,684)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME A% A 2 i W 2 A R
FOR THE YEAR 15,310 12,520
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
mEZzZEB R R
Year ended 31 December 2019 BRE R —N4E+_H=Z+—HIL4E)E

2019 2018
2L ZF )\
Note US$’000 US$’000
M7t e an FLF
Profit attributable to: e A B T
Shareholders of the Company A A ) R 15,800 21,164
Non-controlling interests I e o A 2R 2,222 2,040
18,022 23,204
Total comprehensive income attributable to: 4 1A W % 28 & bt )& 7
Shareholders of the Company A ] R 13,427 11,783
Non-controlling interests I oz i) W 25 1,883 737
15,310 12,520
US cents US cents
FE Al F A
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE Z 4 =] i 3 JE fii =
TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE B Bt i A1
COMPANY 13
Basic and diluted YN E A 6.24 8.35

Details of dividend for the year are disclosed in note 12 to the — ZAN4F & 2 Bt B3 R M B L M sk 12 9 b 8% -

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mE AR R

31 December 2019 RN =F—h4E+_H=+—H

2019 2018
ZE LA —F )\
Note US$’000 US$’000
M7t E e an FLFo
NON-CURRENT ASSETS I i B & e
Property, plant and equipment LESE Y 14 74,705 60,648
Land lease prepayments FE A 4 s HH & 2 15 6,418 6,475
Investments in joint venture NEBLENKRE 17 100,792 90,559
Investments in associate RS AT RIRE 18 19,227 18,880
Other non-current assets At I 3 B 19 235 238
Total non-current assets e B 201,377 176,800
CURRENT ASSETS B &
Inventories pety 20 23,868 13,213
Trade and bills receivables FEWE G ER R 21 20,502 16,609
Prepayments, deposits and BT IR ~ R
other receivables T fth W B 22 9,136 7,672
Cash and cash equivalents BekBESHEY 23 37,774 53,418
Total current assets )& 91,280 90,912
CURRENT LIABILITIES B £
Trade payables FEAF ™ 5 HE K 24 4,651 3,929
Other payables and accruals Al A Bk S FE AR 2 25 16,321 15,369
Bank borrowings SRATAE 3K 26 9,012 2,059
Income tax payables JEAS B 49 1,023 271
Total current liabilities 2 Bh B % 31,007 21,628
NET CURRENT ASSETS o B & 60,273 69,284
TOTAL ASSETS LESS A 7 WU B £ 1R
CURRENT LIABILITIES 261,650 246,084
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FEEFBMRRE
31 December 2019 A =T —h4E+H=+—H

2019 2018
“®AE SN
Note US$’000 US$’000
M7t e an FLF
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES I B £ 1R
Bank borrowings ST K 26 6,939 9,572
Other non-current liabilities HoAth I i B & F 27 28,569 23,111
Deferred tax liabilities BIERLIE A 18 28 3,729 3,855
Total non-current liabilities A8 I W B £ 39,237 36,538
NET ASSETS g e 222,413 209,546
EQUITY HE 25
Equity attributable to shareholders A 2 ) i o R A A A
of the Company
Issued capital AT AR 29 25,333 25,333
Reserves ik 30 173,856 160,429
199,189 185,762
Non-controlling interests FE e il E 25 23,224 23,784
TOTAL EQUITY HE £ 48 5 222,413 209,546

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors of the WX _-ZFEZH=1HHERAGFH LR

Company on 30 March 2020. RET DL 88 o
Thanakorn Seriburi ZE#3 Thirayut Phityaisarakul Z=41 B
Director # 5 Director # 5
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

A —_
e R
Year ended 31 December 2019 &RE - F—WE+H=+—HILF)E

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

N2 42y

m &

B &

AR T JROR A
PRC  Exchange Non-
[ssued Capital reserve fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve funds reserve profits Total  interests equity
o JZES i HE KRR Edetilid M
A& i BlEE  RBEE ik ek M i
US$°000  US$'000  US$’000  US$’000  US$’000  US$000  USS’000  US$’000
Enfrn  Frifrx Fifr Fnfr Fxfr Fnfr Fifx FEifFr
(note 29)  (note 30(b)) (note 30(c)) (note 30(d))
(Wit)  (Wzow)  (W#soe)  (W#0)
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-HE—-H—H 25,333 10,845 14,168 1,115 134,301 185,762 23,784 209,546
Profit for the year AR - - - - 15800 15,800 202 18,022
Other comprehensive income for the year: R AT
Exchange differences related to SN EB R
translation of foreign operations ZHBER %5 - - - (732) - (732) (339) (1,071)
Share of other comprehensive income of: FEA 3L Al 2 T e
Joint venture FEEHE - - - (138) - 138) - 138)
Associate B A - - - (258) - (258) - (258)
Total comprehensive income for the year SRS AH - - - (2,373) 15,800 13,427 1,883 15,310
Transfer in/(out) wA/(h) - - 418 - (418) - - -
Dividend declared to non-controlling BRI o 5
equity holders it & - - - - - - (2,443) (2,443)
At 31 December 2019 REZ-AEFZAST-R 25333 10845 14586 (1,058) 149,683 199,189 23,224 222413
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Year ended 31 December 2019 B E _F—LFE T _H=+—H ILFEJE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

A% R

PRC  Exchange Non-
[ssued Capital reserve fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital reserve funds reserve profits Total interests equity
e#f Bk il BE AR F At Hedi

[1Z Ml B2 WERG ik 4] e Lk
USP000  US§000  US§O00  US§000  US§000 - USS000  US$000  US$000
¥rfrn Fxfrx Frfrx Frifr Frfx  ErTr  ErTxi FrTx
(note 29)  (note 30(b)) (note 30(c)) (note 30(d))
W#9)  (WA0e)  (W#0c)  (W#0d)
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-\E—A—H 15,333 10,845 13,864 10496 113441 113979 BT 197,026
Profit for the year A - - - - 21,164 11,164 2,040 13,204

Other comprehensive income for the year: R AR

Exchange differences related to BUAMBEB RS E R
translation of foreign operations ZHIBE S A - - - (2,945) - (2945) (1,303) (4,248)
Share of other comprehensive income of: FEA S A2 T e
Joint venture AEpE - - - (5,359) - (5,359) - (5,359)
Associate N - - - (1,077) - (1,077) - (1,077)
Total comprehensive income for the year ERAT AR - - - (9,381) 11,164 11,783 B3I 12,510
Transfer in/(out) WA/ () - - 304 - (304) - - -
At 31 December 2018 R F—N\E+ZH=1—H 25333 10,845 14,168 L115 134,301 185,762 13,784 209,546
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

=) N =
?ﬁ/‘ﬁ é EE ﬁ /Jili E %‘:Z
Year ended 31 December 2019 &RE - F—WE+H=+—HILF)E

2019 2018
“ER A ZER )N\
Note US$’000 US$’000
A F L FiL e n
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REWNHZHENE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax o 5t A1 ¥63 A 19,863 24,814
Adjustments for: SR
Bank and other interest income SRAT B A A B A 6 (603) (533)
Amortisation of government grant R il B 8 8 (100) (391)
Finance costs T 7 AR 7 - -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment E R L PN 8 4,492 4,828
Amortisation of land lease prepayments TAAT B 2 8 8 170 200
Loss on disposal of property, plant and B -~ R K
equipment, net i 18 6 24 203
Gain on disposal of land lease prepayments, net  H 8 ¥ ff + HFL & #
i ) 35 A 6 - (95)
Share of profits and losses of: JREAY i B e s 1R
Joint venture SR ENE S (11,616) (17,966)
Associate ) =g 18(b) (1,917) (1,875)
10,313 9,185
(Increase)/decrease in inventories w8 (W), WwA» (10,902) 2,101
Increase in trade and bills receivables JRE W B 5 M ik e 5 5 g (4,128) (483)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, AR - e K
deposits and other receivables oAb HE W R R () A (1,293) 721
Increase in trade payables JE A B2 5 MR sk 14 776 766
(Decrease)/increase in other payables At A e ok ke TR B
and accruals (W) /5 m (155) 4,988
Cash (used in)/generated from operations BEMA),/ Pifrzie (5,389) 17,278
Interest paid cAFFE (699) (149)
Income tax paid CAT BT AR (1,252) (558)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated BEWB (), iz
from operating activities Bl 4 0 R (7,340) 16,571
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E X &© ¥ 8 B &FR 2 A

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GZERERER
Year ended 31 December 2019 #E ~F— L+ H =+ —H L4 ¥
2019 2018
SEAE SE A
Note US$’°000 US$’'000
M i FFiL FLF
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BREWEHZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment W R Kk (19,092) (13,333)
Government grant received BT i B 5,814 13,900
Decrease in other non-current liabilities HoA Ik i B £ A WA (37) (34)
Dividends received from associate W B I 7 R I B 1,312 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant MEWE - W &
and equipment it 45 3K T8 41 33
Proceeds from disposal of land lease prepayments H} 8 ¥8 £ + #h 7l & %
Jt ik S - 1,027
Interest received o) B 603 533
Net cash flow (used in)/from BEWH M), itz
investing activities Bl 4 i B AR (11,359) 2,126
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEHHZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from bank borrowings SRATAE T Sk E 23(c) 6,548 10,932
Repayment of bank borrowings 18 72 SRATAE 3K 23(c) (2,050) (8,230)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests A I e o 4 W 25 gt 6L (1,238) -
Net cash flows from financing activities REWEB RN
BERaEFa 3,260 2,702
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN HERHEEHED
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (W), 5 I 8 (15,439) 21,399
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 4EHIZHE LB L& EHY 53,418 33,669
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net A BE 3 5% B) 2 5% B (205) (1,650)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERZBERBEEHED
AT END OF YEAR 23 37,774 53,418
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% R &= MY &E

Year ended 31 December 2019 RE_-F—NE+_HA=+—HILEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Chia Tai Enterprises International Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
Company and its subsidiaries hereinafter are collectively
referred to as the “Group”. The Group and its joint venture
and associate are principally involved in (i) manufacturing and
sale of chlortetracycline products; (ii) trading of machinery;
and (iii) manufacturing and sale of automotive parts

respectively.

At 31 December 2019, the directors consider the immediate
holding company of the Company to be Charoen Pokphand
Foods Public Company Limited (“CPF”), which is incorporated
in the Kingdom of Thailand and shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and remains to be as such as
at the date of approval of these financial statements. CPF is
a significantly owned company of Charoen Pokphand Group
Company Limited (“CPG”), which is incorporated in the
Kingdom of Thailand.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2019 #& £ _F—hE+_H=+—HILEE

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(which include all International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards (“IASs”)
and interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the Company, using

consistent accounting policies.
Basis of measurement

These financial statements are presented in United States
dollars (“US$”), and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“US$’000”) except when otherwise indicated. The

functional currency of the Company is United States dollars.
Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity
with IFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future

periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs
that have significant effect on these financial statements and

major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note

3.

B AR L

2.1
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 75 3R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2019 &RE - F—WE+H=+—HILF)E

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES

The IASB has issued a number of new standards, amendments
to IFRSs and interpretation that are first effective for
the current year. Of these, the following new standards,

amendments and interpretation may be relevant to the Group:

IFRS 16 Leases

Amendments to IFRS9  Amendments to [FRS 9
Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Amendments to IAS 28  Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term
Interests in Associates and

Joint Ventures

Amendments to IFRS 3 Business
Combinations, IFRS 11 Joint
arrangements, IAS 12 Income
Taxes and IAS 23

Borrowing Costs

Annual Improvements to

IFRS 2015-2017 Cycle

IFRS Interpretations Uncertainty over Income

Committee — Tax Treatments

Interpretation 23

IFRS 16 Leases

Under IFRS 16 Leases, there are recognition exemptions for
short-term leases and leases of low-value items. The Group
elects not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less or assets with value of less than US$5,000. The Group
continues to recognise the lease payments associated with
these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the

lease term.

Other new standards, amendments and interpretation that are
effective from 1 January 2019 do not have significant financial

impact on these financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard, amendment or

interpretation that is not yet effective for the current year.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

22 B BERBBEZEXR

I B ) 2% B LA T O
3 0 T R~ T R R R o SR ACAE
UCHE 3K o 51 v T R SEAS 4 B A B
R~ BT SRR

BT s wRE  HE

58 165%
[ BB BRI R B A
# I SE o HOSAG A M
& 5T Vadig 3 Codia
O R R B HT B B e HI SR 285
SWSMEMIERT BB EAARGELE
Z R a5
[ B AR IR B B R A
#H2015-2017 3SR XA - BT
BHERESOE  BEPRMEHRE B
SE G B LHE - EET BB
Bt QI A5 1298 i 75 Bl
B A& T 18 B g w5t 1 Hl
2398 fF AR
BB B AR ERZ
BREEY I SE P
— 2R3

BT BRELENE16REE

AL % I e S o B SR 1O A T > S
AR ARG A i PR B AT 8 T R A o AR
V33 458 A i L B B0 M S R A TR 1 28 D Y
R 9 L 8 AR R 5,0003 78 22 2 e
6 7 AP0 L R o AR D A AR AL B 0T DA
L T L % S L R B L A R s
o

HAb A = F —Jusf— A — H R A 200 57 e
IR HP T2 FN RN R 2L A PN
BB -

AR [ P A A B SN S PR A9 AT A 1 R A 28 FR BT
R~ BT R o

- - hFEF§

71



72

CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements

E K

© ¥ EH B AR

B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2019 BRE R —N4E+_H=Z+—HIL4E)E

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB
issued a number of new standards and amendments which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
which have not been adopted in these financial statements.
These include the following which may be relevant to the
Group:

Amendments to IFRS 3

Definition of a Business !

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8
Definition of Material !

Amendments to [AS 1
and IAS 8

Amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28 Sale or contribution of

assets between an investor and its

Amendments to
IFRS 10 and IAS 28

associate or joint venture

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.
2 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

adoption.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these amendments upon initial application.
So far, the Group considers that the impact of adopting
the amendments will have on the consolidated financial

statements are unlikely to be significant.
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Year ended 31 December 2019 &RE - F—WE+H=+—HILF)E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
these financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing these
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is

no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect of
those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable

assets.
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Year ended 31 December 2019 BRE R —N4E+_H=Z+—HIL4E)E

2.4 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders
of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position in accordance with notes 2.4(h) or

(i) depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are

made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an

investment in an associate or joint venture (see note

2.4(b)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less

impairment losses (see note 2.4(e)(ii)).
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Year ended 31 December 2019 &RE - F—WE+H=+—HILF)E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Associate and joint venture

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions. Significant influence is presumed to exist
when the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the

voting power of another entity.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
or Company has joint control, established by contracts
requiring unanimous consent for decisions about the
activities that significantly affect the arrangements’

returns.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in these financial statements under the
equity method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale). Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of
the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of
the investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of
the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is
adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see note 2.4(e)(ii)).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in profit or loss, whereas the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised as other

comprehensive income.
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2.4 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Associate and joint venture (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in
the associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose,
the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the
Group’s long-term interests that in substance form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate or the

joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate and joint venture
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in
the investee, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case they are recognised immediately in profit or

loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be

accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date
when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as

the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see

note 2.4(e)(ii)):

(i) buildings held for own use which are situated on

leasehold land; and
(ii)  other items of plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing

costs (see note 2.4(p)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or

disposal.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of items of property, plant and
equipment to their estimated residual value over the
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used

for this purpose are as follows:

2% to 4.5%
6% to 15%
10% to 33.33%

Industrial buildings
Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment
9% to 33.33%

Motor vehicles and

transport facilities
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2.4 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are

reviewed annually.
Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents the silos, factories
and warehouses under construction. Construction
in progress is stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and

ready for use.
Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. Control is
conveyed where the customer has both the right to
direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain

substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019

Where the contract contains lease components
and non-lease components, the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single

lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease
on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a

systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over the
lease term, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or rate are
not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are

incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

Policy applicable from 1 January 2019
(continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability plus any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the
cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease

incentives received.

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there is a
change in the Group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the Group will
be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to

Z€ro.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Leased assets (continued)

(ii)

Policy applicable prior 1 January 2019

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rentals
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting

period in which they are incurred.

Land lease prepayments represent costs of land
use rights paid to governmental authorities in
mainland China. Land lease payments under
operating leases are initially stated at cost and
subsequently amortised on the straight-line basis

over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables
and other receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs
on financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents and trade

and other receivables).
Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the

cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted
using the following discount rates where the

effect of discounting is material:

. fixed-rate financial assets, trade and
other receivables: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an

approximation thereof; and

. variable-rate financial assets: current

effective interest rate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables
and other receivables (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to

credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort.
This includes information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future

economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following

bases:

. 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the

reporting date; and

° lifetime ECLs: these are losses that
are expected to result from all possible
default events over the expected lives
of the items to which the ECL model
applies.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables
and other receivables (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast
general economic conditions at the reporting
date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month
ECLs unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of the financial
instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an

amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables
and other receivables (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date with
that assessed at the date of initial recognition.
In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when the
debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held). The Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information

that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial

recognition:

° failure to make payments of principal or

interest on their contractually due dates;

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

24 FESTHHRBE (H)

(e) EERMEGH

(i) BREZERARZEHEREME
WAk B9 B e (A8

1= B /7 fig X E £

i o e W R =
H O YO R DR A KR B
FHIRE > A ) LE g e i H
il B U B A Y 4
Al L9 A B o 7 TR R A
LNV St RLTAP R €7 PN PN
] fig 0 2 H R HAE B AT >
LA 55 1 36 AR BE 728 38 A i 47 )
B > il S BLAC AT (i $E
A) I SIS B A A e A
ST 2% I8 £ B RCA R OR  E B
R P EERE > £ 455 208 1 KB %
AR EGREEKRS S
A HE A Y TS A R

HAm > FEA A S A
YO w8 AR A5 K b T i
FEUTER

. REEHE G F B H 52
PARSHAE

- - hFEF§

85



86

CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

E X &© ¥ 8 B &R

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 #R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2019 BRE R —N4E+_H=Z+—HIL4E)E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables
and other receivables (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(continued)

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial instrument’s
external or internal credit rating (if

available);

o an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor; and

° existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant
adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to

meet its obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis,
the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past

due status and credit risk ratings.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of trade and bills receivables
and other receivables (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instruments’
credit risk since initial recognition. Any
change in the ECLs amount is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for
all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a

loss allowance account.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset
is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not have
assets or sources of income that could generate
sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts

subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the

period in which the recovery occurs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously

recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased:

° property, plant and equipment;

° land lease prepayments; and

° investments in subsidiaries in the

Company’s statement of financial

position

If any such indication exists, the asset’s

recoverable amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating

unit).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)
Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units) and
then, to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or

value in use (if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not

reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are

recognised.
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2.4 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense

in the period in which the reversal occurs.
Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for credit
losses (see note 2.4(e)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without
any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are

stated at cost less allowance for credit losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

U]

1)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,

using the effective interest method.
Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Trade and other payables are subsequently stated
at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would

be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks, and short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash

flows.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued
in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment
or settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at their

present values.
Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the

payment of termination benefits.
Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund benefit scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the

MPF Scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

Employee benefits (continued)

(iii)

Retirement benefit schemes (continued)

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC
government, subsidiaries of the Group in
mainland China are required to make specific
contributions to the state-controlled retirement
plan at rates not more than 16% (before 1 May
2019: 20%) (the percentage to be determined
by each of the government of the provinces,
autonomous regions or municipalities) of the
total salaries of the employees in mainland
China. Certain provinces, autonomous regions
or municipalities are overburdened by the
pension insurance due to higher number of
retired people, it is required to make specific
contributions at rates higher than 16%
(before 1 May 2019: 20%) (the percentage
to be determined by each of the government
of the provinces, autonomous regions or
municipalities) of the total salaries of the
employees upon approval of the ministry of
labour and the ministry of finance. The PRC
government is responsible for the pension
liability to the retired employees. The
employees of the subsidiaries are entitled to
a monthly pension at their retirement dates.
The subsidiaries have no further obligation for
post-retirement benefits beyond the annual

contributions.
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2.4 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of

previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax

losses and unused tax credits.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences relate
to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax
loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is,
those differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or

periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax

assets and liabilities are:

(i) the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business

combination); and

(ii)  temporary differences relating to investments
in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the

future.
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2.4 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on expected manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities,
using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the
end of each reporting period. Deferred tax assets and

liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the

liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

(i) in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and

settle the liability simultaneously; or

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority on either; or
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Year ended 31

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

U]

(m)

(n)

Income tax (continued)

(ii) (continued)
° the same taxable entity; or
. different taxable entities, which, in

each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current
tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.
Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added
tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any

trade discounts.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue recognition

policies are as follows:

(i)

(ii)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer takes
possession of and accepts the products. Sales
returns are allowed only when the products are
damaged or defective. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, applying the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15. If the
products are a partial fulfilment of a contract
covering other goods and/or services, then the
amount of revenue recognised is an appropriate
proportion of the total transaction price under
the contract, allocated between all the goods
and services promised under the contract on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. As the
remaining performance obligations (if any) is
part of a contract that has an original expected
duration of one year or less, the Group has
applied the practicable expedient in paragraph
121 of IFRS 15 and such information is not
disclosed. Besides, the Group recognises the
incremental costs of obtaining a contract as
an expense when incurred if the amortisation
period of the assets that the Group otherwise
would have recognised is within one year or less,
applying the practical expedient in paragraph 94
of IFRS 15.

Dividends
Dividend income from unlisted investments

is recognised when the shareholder’s right to

receive payment is established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
under the effective interest method using the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or financial assets measured
at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”) (recycling) that are not
credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss

allowance) of the asset.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
statement of financial position initially when
there is reasonable assurance that they will
be received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them. Grants
that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the same periods

in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
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2.4 SUM

MARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of
the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss, except those arising from
foreign currency borrowings used to hedge a net
investment in a foreign operation which are recognised

in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. The transaction date is the
date on which the Group initially recognises such
non-monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that
are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

measured.

For the purpose of presenting these financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the entities now
comprising the Group denominated in currencies other
than US$ are translated into US$, the presentation
currency of the Group, using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive

income and in equity in exchange fluctuation reserve.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

(a)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are

expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale

are interrupted or complete.
Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

(a) has control or joint control over the

Group; or

(b) has significant influence over the Group;

or

(c) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s

parent.

(ii)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(a) the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is

related to the others).
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Year ended 31 December 2019 BRE R —N4E+_H=Z+—HIL4E)E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Related parties (continued)

(ii)

(b)

(continued)

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

both entities are joint ventures of the

same third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an

associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly

controlled by a person identified in (i).

a person identified in (i)(a) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of

the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the

Group or to the Group’s parent.
P psp

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence, or

be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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Year ended 31 December 2019 &RE - F—WE+H=+—HILF)E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

(s)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical

locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a

majority of these criteria.
Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received a consideration (or an amount of
consideration that is due) from the customer. If a
customer pays the consideration before the Group
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract
liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). The Group
receives a certain percentage of the contract value as a
deposit from certain customers, which is recognised as a
contract liability. Contract liabilities are recognised as

revenue when the Group performs under the contract.
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3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting judgments

and estimates:
(a) Impairment of property, plant and equipment

As explained in note 2.4(e)(ii), the impairment loss
for property, plant and equipment is recognised for
the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount when events or changes in
circumstance indicate the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amount of the assets, or,
where appropriate, the cash generating unit to which
they belong, is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. The recoverable amounts are
determined based on fair value less costs of disposal
which are based on the best information available
to reflect the amount obtainable at the reporting
date, from the disposal of the asset in an arm’s length
transaction between knowledgeable and willing parties,
after deducting the costs of disposal. For the estimation
of value in use, the Group’s management estimates
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and
chooses a suitable discount rate in order to calculate

the present value of those cash flows.
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Year ended 31 December 2019 &RE - F—WE+H=+—HILF)E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(b)

(c)

Write down of inventories

As explained in note 2.4(f), the management of the
Group reviews the aging analysis of its inventories at
each reporting date, and makes allowance for obsolete
and slow-moving inventory items. Management
estimates the net realisable value for such items based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and current
market conditions. The Group carries out an inventory
review on a product by product basis at each reporting

date and makes allowances for obsolete items.
Loss allowance of trade receivables

As explained in note 2.4(e)(i), the policy for credit
loss allowance of the Group’s trade receivables is
based on the evaluation of collectability and the aging
analysis of the trade receivables and on management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each customer. If
the financial conditions of customers of the Group
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, additional allowances may be

required.
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4

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has two

reportable operating segments:

° the biochemical segment is mainly engaged in the

manufacture and sale of chlortetracycline products; and

o the industrial segment is engaged in trading of
machinery and the manufacture and sale of automotive

parts, through the Group’s joint venture and associate.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted
profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit before tax except that bank interest income, finance
costs and items not specifically attributed to individual
segments, such as head office or corporate administration

expenses are excluded from such measurements.

Segment assets exclude unallocated corporate assets.
Unallocated corporate assets include cash and cash
equivalents, income tax receivable and other assets that are

managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude unallocated corporate liabilities.
Unallocated corporate liabilities include bank borrowings,
income tax payables, deferred tax liabilities and other

liabilities that are managed on a group basis.

All revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
at the point in time when our customer obtains control of
the promised goods, i.e. when products are delivered to the
customers’ premises for domestic sales or in accordance with
the terms and conditions of sale for export sales. The major
product line of the Group is the manufacture and sale of
chlortetracycline products in biochemical segment as disclosed

in note 4(a).

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by

geographical location of customers is disclosed in note 4(b)(i).
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Year ended 31 December 2019 &RE - F—WE+H=+—HILF)E

4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4
(continued)

Reportable operating segments

The following tables present revenue, profit or loss and

certain assets, liabilities and expenditure information

for the Group’s reportable operating segments for the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

Year ended 31 December 201

9

RETEEN (R

(a) TWERKEIE

LR $3 7 AC 4 T 2% 7] 2 4R A 3
REEZF-NERZFN\E+D
A=+ —HIEFEERZBOA - #HiE K&
HTEE - AREFER -

BEZZNETA=ZTHIESE

Biochemical Industrial
operations operations Total
AL B T K]
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000

F# ot T 70 F ot T 70 F 7t T 75

Segment revenue vig L N
Sales to external customers HE T REF 105,042 - 105,042
Segment results g B3
The Group A4 8,380 (1,215) 7,165
Share of profits and losses of: R Al ¥ 1) B pes 4
Joint venture R e - 11,616 11,616
Associate W% A wH - 1,917 1,917
8,380 12,318 20,698
Reconciliation: WEIEE
Bank interest income AT R B A 603
Unallocated head office and A 43 0 AR B A SE B X
corporate expenses (1,438)
Profit before tax o A% i 36 1) 19,863
Other segment information H At 43 25 & B
Depreciation and amortisation P8 B o 4,645 17 4,662
Capital expenditure* AR B 19,851 - 19,851
* Including additions to property, plant and equipment. * B - W T Z Wi e
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4

Year ended 31 December 2019 #E ~F— L+ H =+ —H L4 ¥
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 reEHER (E)
(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments (continued) (a) TWUEHRKLEDIE(E)
At 31 December 2019 R_E—NLE+_H=1+—H
Biochemical Industrial
operations operations Total
CX (% 37 TEER ko]
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
E ) an E Sy an E Sy an
Segment assets o JE B 130,480 124,356 254,836
Reconciliation: WETIEE -
Unallocated corporate assets ROMAEEE 37,821
Total assets Mg E 292,657
Segment liabilities A 49,267 38 49,305
Reconciliation: JEEE -
Unallocated corporate liabilities AoBAEAE 20,939
Total liabilities A 70,244
Other segment information I At 43 28 % B
Investments in joint venture REELEENRE - 100,792 100,792
Investments in associate R AR NERE - 19,227 19,227

E K

*® ¥ =

B A R

n

Bl
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B % ] & M &
Year ended 31 December 2019 W E _F—JLETF_H=1+—HILFEE
4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 ReEFWER (&)
(continued)

(a) Reportable operating segments (continued) (a) TWERKLEDIE(E)

Year ended 31 December 2018 BEZ-N\ET-HA=Z+—HILEE
Biochemical Industrial

operations operations Total
A AL B THEEH A
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000

oL T I8 Fo Tt For Tt

Segment revenue 5B A
Sales to external customers WETAIKRE S 93,362 - 93,362
Segment results 43 8 3 A
The Group 45 7,302 (1,487) 5,815
Share of profits and losses of: A A i B B s 4
Joint venture B - 17,966 17,966
Associate iR A | - 1,875 1,875
7,302 18,354 25,656
Reconciliation: PEEE -
Bank interest income SRATA] B WA 533
Unallocated head office and P8 Y EE
corporate expenses (1,375)
Profit before tax 5% 756 iy ¥z Al 24,814
Other segment information It 43 28 & B
Depreciation and amortisation R YE A 5,010 18 5,028
Capital expenditure* G AEH 19,199 - 19,199
* Including additions to property, plant and equipment. * BEWE - W5 B Z R -
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E K

© ¥ EH B AR

n

Bl

Total
ik
US$’000
FEoLFoo

214,254

53,458

261,712

42,229

15,937

58,166

90,559

B 75 ] & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2019 #E - —JuéE+ 2 H =+ — A L4 %
4 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 ReEFSWER (&)
(continued)
(a) Reportable operating segments (continued) (a) TWUEHRKLEDIE(E)
At 31 December 2018 REF-NEH+ZA=+—H
Biochemical Industrial
operations operations
A AL E T TR
US$’000 US$’000
Fx T FILFIT
Segment assets o JE B 99,717 114,477
Reconciliation: WEIEE -
Unallocated corporate assets AOBAEERE
Total assets A E
Segment liabilities Vi =i 42,198 31
Reconciliation: JEEE
Unallocated corporate liabilities AOBAEEARE
Total liabilities 48 £ 1
Other segment information It 43 28 & B
Investments in joint venture REEAENRE - 90,559
Investments in associate 8 A ) B - 18,880

18,880

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

- - hFEF§



CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

4

E X &© ¥ 8 B &R 2 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %% 3Rk M R
Year ended 31 December 2019 &RE - F—WE+H=+—HILF)E
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4 reEHER (E)
(continued)
(b)  Geographical information (b) HEZEHR
(i) Revenue from external customers () RESPKEFZKA
2019 2018
ZE A RN\
US$’000 US$’000
Ey e abn FoLFo
Mainland China o B ks e 42,340 40,982
Asia Pacific R A
(excluding mainland China) (7R AL 55 v B K B ) 28,485 24,251
North America M 12,507 11,196
Europe ik DM 11,485 8,779
Elsewhere At b 10,225 8,154
105,042 93,362
The revenue information shown above is based EFNU A E R T % P A

(c)

on the location of customers.
(i) Non-current assets

At 31 December 2019, 99% (2018: 99%) of
the Group’s non-current assets are located in

mainland China.

Information about major customers (c)

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
there was no single customer that contributed 10% or

more of the Group’s total revenue.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2019 #& £ _F—hE+_H=+—HILEE

5

REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate of the invoiced value of
goods sold, net of value-added tax and government surcharges,

and after allowances for goods returned and trade discounts

X E B ER2A

5 WA

We A A i 389 8 A B B BRI ¢ > % 1 B R £
B 52 5 Pruig z B 6 B 3 5 v I A o e
S 25 i o A ) 50 5 90 O o R R o PR AR

recognised within the scope of IFRS 15. All of the Group’s B2 WA 2R B AL -
revenue is from the biochemical segment.
OTHER INCOME, NET 6 Ht e A 38
An analysis of other income, net is as follows: HABW A F#E BT -
2019 2018
SECNE B
US$’000 US$’000
B/ an FL T
Bank interest income HATH B BN 603 533
Government grants BT Al B 1,354 925
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BE R
plant and equipment, net % 5 s 15 A (24) (203)
Gain on disposal of land lease prepayments, net A T AT - b e R A - 95
Foreign exchange differences, net AN T 5 26 B 500 9)
Income from sale of trial production products, net  $5 8 it & & W WA 5 81 522
Others HoAfth 129 125
2,643 1,988
FINANCE COSTS 7 B 3% B A<
2019 2018
“EZ s R )\
US$’000 US$’000
E F T
Interest expense on bank borrowings AT R Z A B & 699 149
Less: Interest expense capitalised™® W M) BB & A b+ (699) (149)

* Interest expense was capitalised at a rate of 5.7% per annum *
(2018: 4.5%) for the year ended 31 December 2019.

—)\4E : 4.5%) 5155 -
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

E K

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging:

Cost of inventories sold
Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment

Amortisation of land lease prepayments

Expenses relating to short-term leases
(lease term of 12 months or less)

and/or leases of low-value assets

Minimum lease payments of leasehold

land and properties under operating lease

Auditors’ remuneration

Employee benefit expenses (including
directors’ emoluments — note 9)
Wages, salaries and benefits in kind

Pension scheme contributions

i % B B AR D H

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 5 3R R MY A

Year ended 31 December 2019 &RE - F—WE+H=+—HILF)E
8  BREBEATSEF

O BB AR
Z P

TEAF 4 R B A

B 7 Je 0 AL B (L
SN AR 128 A)
K,/ SR 8 &
MEz M

GIN=R o W EYE &g iiN

Z B A B Ak
A% 5 il T <
T E AR A S (645 3 3
& — i E9)

T¥ -~ #i e MIEB & H 15

B AR Bk

2019

E A
US$°000

HTE T

Note
Mt

76,094

14 4,492
15 170

249

197

16,595
1,089

A 45 ] o Bt i ¥ A A 40 B R 81 4% 0

2018

B
US$’000
T

66,108

4,828
200

375
193

15,505
1,187
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BF 7% R & M

Year ended 31 December 2019 #E =& —JuF+ZH =+ — H 1L

9 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9 EEME
Directors’ emoluments, disclosed pursuant to Section 383(1) B E A BRG] E383 (IR LA T (T
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the 2R 25 BB ML SR Bl E 5 A B
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BT :

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Salaries,
allowances, Retirement
and benefits  Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
B iR
wE  ERENSR WL RIS b
Note US$°000 US$°000 US$°000 US$°000 US$°000
i3 FrTr Fonon Fonon Foaon Fyaon
Year ended 31 December 2019 REZZ-E
FZAZF—HILEE

Chairman and non- executive director: ~ # H KRBT ES

Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont EEIN - - - - -
Executive directors: WhiEs:
M. Thirayut Phityaisarakul BB - - - - -
Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi AR EE - 532 - - 532
Mr. Nopadol Chiaravanont AR - - - - -
Mr. Chawalit Na Muangtoun EERLE (i) - 264 43 - 307
- 796 43 - 839
Non-executive director: FBfTEE
Mr. Yoichi kezoe Wi~k - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors: WU RITHEF :
Mr. Surasak Rounroengrom Surasak Rounroengrom g4 31 - - - 31
M. Cheng Yuk Wo WA 31 - - - 31
M. Edward Ko Ming Tung R 31 - - - 31
93 - - - 93
Total directors’ emoluments BEMEAH 93 796 43 - 932
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Year ended 31 December 2019 &RE - F—WE+H=+—HILF)E
9 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 9 EEME (F)
Salaries,
allowances, Retirement
and benefits  Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
B
e FBLNE Wik BREMEH i
Note US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
W Ei i Eonon ErLFr Ei i Ei i
Year ended 31 December 2018 BREZZ\4
FIAZ—HEEE
Chairman and non- executive director: ~ # B RFHTHES
Mr. Soopakij Chearavanont BN R - - - _ _
Executive directors: WES:
Mr. Thirayut Phityaisarakul BHEEE - - - - -
Mr. Thanakorn Seriburi By - 532 - - 532
Mr. Nopadol Chiaravanont RN - - - - -
M. Yao Minpu R AME (i) - 305 20 - 545
- 857 120 - 1,077
Non-executive director: FunEs:
M. Yoichi Ikezoe R E— ek - - - _ _
Independent non-executive directors: B BITHE :
Mr. Surasak Rounroengrom Surasak Rounroengrom & 31 - - - 31
M. Cheng Yuk Wo WA 31 - - - 31
M. Edward Ko Ming Tung FWR A 31 - - - 31
9 - - - 93
Total directors’ emoluments ERMEHE 93 857 220 - 1,170
Notes: Mt ¢
(i) Appointed as executive director on 18 February 2019. (i) N oZ—IETH I\ ERE LTSS -
(ii) Resigned as executive director on 11 December 2018. (ii) A _F - )\E+ A+ —HBL T ESE -
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B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2019 #& £ _F—hE+_H=+—HILEE

9 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no emolument
was paid by the Group to the directors of the Group as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group as
compensation for loss of office (2018: nil), and there was no
arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive

any emoluments (2018: nil).

10 FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2018: two) directors. Details of the emoluments are set out in
note 9 above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2018:

three) non-directors are as follows:

B AR L

9

10

Bl

EEME ()

REEZF-WEF A= HIREE
A 455 ] SN 06 S A PO < 4 5 S DL B A A AR SR
V) sl A o N AR [ W AT T i 0 785 L Al
(= —)\ = ) > 75 3 4 3 = i 5% ol IR RO
RACPTIN B2 Lk (ZF— )\ = ) o

TNBREHMES

BN Tohr B R B MR B AR (2F N
4 2fr) HEE > RN SR B
WFRED o B T3 AL (2% — )\4F : 3fr) JE#HF 2
B4 E

2019 2018

SERE SR

US$’000 US$’000

Ey e n FEIL T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fim o~ A RIER &2 721 860
Discretionary bonus i 15 16 4L 99 134
820 994

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose

emoluments fell within the following bands is set out below:

US$192,001 to US$256,000
(equivalent to HK$1,500,001 to
HK$2,000,000)

US$256,001 to US$320,000
(equivalent to HK$2,000,001 to
HK$2,500,000)

US$320,001 to US$385,000
(equivalent to HK$2,500,001 to
HK$3,000,000)
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B 1o S I =0 A N R DAR B0 4 8
mE

192,0013€5C £256,0003 78
(FH % 21,500,001 ¢ &
2,000,000 %)

256,0013% Ji: #320,00032 70
(FH % J%2,000,001 # 7C £
2,500,000%% 7T )

320,00134 78 £385,0003¢ 70
(FH % 2,500,001 # ¢ £
3,000,000 75

2019 2018
SRR SE
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
L #HH ESHH

2 _

- 1

1 2
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B 7% 8R & M =
Year ended 31 December 2019 E R —NHFETH=1—HIL4)E
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10 EfuESFMES (&)
(continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2019, no emolument was REE_F—NETH=Z+—HILEE >
paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid employees of AR 45 [E S 0 S A5 T 4 4 A e v TR B 2
the Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group LA — 4L > DL i AAS 45 9 s A i A AR 45
as compensation for loss of office (2018: nil). [ AR A R R R (e — )\ s i) o
INCOME TAX 1 FEH
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made for the A [ 7 A 4R B R A AL T ¥ I EUAT: ) ME SR B
year as the Group did not generate any assessable profits in WA s FRDLARAARGE RAEFEA S BLRH (Z
Hong Kong during the year (2018: nil). FT—)\4 : JE)
The Group’s subsidiaries operating in the People’s Republic of B A ERESBBG > e ARt
China (“PRC”) are subject to income tax at the rate of 25% [ (B ) 8848 2 A 45 18 M g 2 W] 75 st 1
(2018: 25%) on their taxable income according to the PRC JESRBEMAFLBER25% (—F— )\ : 25%)
corporate income tax laws. In accordance with the relevant tax BUAZ AR B o AR 3R P B 2 R BB S B R i
rules and regulations in the PRC, certain subsidiaries of the B > A4 [ b B 2 2 T B A R
Group in the PRC enjoy income tax exemptions or reductions. B WL BT B 2 R o
2019 2018
“ER - ZER )N\
Note US$’000 US$’000
M &t F L Fi FoLF oL
Current — the PRC AR —
Charge for the year AR BE 37 1,938 1,010
Under/(over)-provision in prior years gL, (£)5HR 47 (88)
Deferred & Gt 28 (144) 688
Total tax expense for the year AR AR P T A 3 1,841 1,610
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Year ended 31 December 2019 #& £ _F—hE+_H=+—HILEE

11

12

INCOME TAX (continued)

*® ¥ =

11

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit

before tax at the statutory rates for PRC in which the Group

principally operates to the tax expense is as follows:

B AR L

Bl

FriEwt (&)

Herb I (A 45 1] 0 S B ) 1 9k 2 A R
B e I 58 i v ) it 4 e 5 I ) BB I ¢
EL R SS T

2019 2018
SECNE CE
US$’°000 US$’000
B n FIL T T
Profit before tax o 5t Ty ¥4 1) 19,863 24,814
Tax expense on profit before tax, calculated e v [ A 2E P AR BB 3 25% K
at the PRC corporate income tax rate of 25% Ik A3 I ¥4 A T 45 ) B 3 4 4,966 6,204
Lower tax rates enacted by local 20 A2 M 65 BL 75 ) LA
tax authority Z KA (832) (768)
Effect of withholding tax at 10% on the i A 4 [ o R 2 B S A WD -
distributable profit of the Group’s subsidiaries, BB A 8 A R 4T
joint venture and associate in PRC A SN BB 10% 2 58 B 646 603
Under/(over)-provision in prior years HAEEAD (£) 7R 47 (88)
Profits and losses attributable to VA B8 A 3 B U 2 2 ] ¥R A
joint venture and associate a4 it (3,383) (4,960)
Expense not deductible for tax K S 397 619
Tax expense at the Group’s PR AR A OB R F
effective tax rate B 3 1,841 1,610

DIVIDENDS

12

The board of directors of the Company has resolved not to
declare dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:

nil).
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Year ended 31 December 2019 #E _~F—FE+_H=1+—HILEE

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 13 ZFQARREMEz2EREFR
TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the R AU & FH 2 5 TR A A 5] IR R
profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company JRE Ak A 4 B 6k ) B A N VR AT =2 0 I A AT
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares and 6 JE A S B RE P Xy 8 o

convertible preference shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the BB FEA KRR R TI ML 38 DL R Bt 4 .

following data:

2019 2018
SECNE RN
US$°000 US$’000

F 7t T 7 FIL T

Earnings i
Profit for the year attributable FH A 51 554 % 35k A ¥ A
to shareholders of the Company, used in Z AN ] e A AR HE AN 5 R
the basic earnings per share calculation 15,800 21,164
2019 2018
—F A —F )\
Shares i 3
Weighted average number of ordinary shares JFH P B SR B AR 3 B & AR
and convertible preference shares in issue BEAT 25 98 B RT 4 B R S
during the year, used in the basic earnings JBE o R ST 35 8
per share calculation 253,329,087 253,329,087
As there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares during W_F— WA =T NE+_HA=Z+—HIE
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the amount of A i B D IO Y A A 9 % o W IR
diluted earnings per share is equal to basic earnings per share. Ve A R 45 % 4 I Jk AR 3R ) o
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Bt 75 #R R MY &

Year ended 31 December 2019 BRE R —N4E+_H=Z+—HIL4E)E
14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 YE -BERRKRE

Furniture, Motor
fixtures  vehicles and
Industrial Plant and and office transport  Construction
buildings machinery equipment facilities in progress Total
Bl RER RHR
IEBT  RERES HAR il FRLE b
Note US §°000 US $000 US $000 US $000 US $000 US $000
Wi Fitr Fitr Fitr Fitr Fitr Fitr
(note (a))
(Hit()
At 1 January 2019: RZF-WE-R—R:
Cost S 32,281 66,053 6,629 1,581 21,067 127,611
Accumulated depreciation A B R
and impairment (14,745) (46,482) (4,583) (1,153) - (66,963)
Net carrying amount e 17,536 19,571 2,046 428 21,067 60,648
Net carrying amount: TR
At 1 January 2019 REZ-nE-A-H 17,536 19,571 2,046 418 21,067 60,648
Additions RE 59 156 8 3 19,550 19,851
Depreciation provided R
during the year 8 (1,170) (2,129) (477) (116) - (4,492)
Transfer inf{ou) BA/(H) 519 3,685 804 61 (5,069) -
Disposals i (378) (53) (2) 1) - (440)
Exchange realignment % (205) (247) (29) (5) (376) (862)
At 31 December 2019 R-F-AEFZHZ1—H 16,361 20,383 2,425 364 35,172 74,705
At 31 December 2019: BB A= R
Cost [N 32,011 68,649 7424 1,552 35,172 144,868
Accumulated depreciation 2R E LB
and impairment (15,710) (48,266) (4,999) (1,188) - (70,163)
Net carrying amount W 16,361 20,383 2,425 364 35172 74,705

120

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

- - hFEF§



CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

E K

i % B B AR

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

A H

Notes to the Financial Statements

B %% 3Rk M R
Year ended 31 December 2019 &RE - F—WE+H=+—HILF)E

14 W% BERRE (&)

(continued)
Furniture, Motor
fixtures vehicles and
Industrial Plant and and office transport  Construction
buildings machinery equipment facilities in progress Total
Tk E R RER
THET  HREREE AR ity hRLE &%
Note US §000 US §000 US §000 US §000 US $000 US $000
it Frtr Frtr Frtr Frtr Frtr Frtr
(note (a)
(Wita)
At 1 January 2018: REZ-NE—=H—H:
Cost A 33,118 09,693 1302 1,652 4197 117,224
Accumulated depreciation LEET YT
and impairment (14,323) (47,043) (4.985) (L,111) - (67,462)
Net carrying amount T 19,455 11,652 1317 541 4797 49,762
Net carrying amount: W A
At 1 January 2018 RZZ—~\E—H—H 19,435 12,65 2317 541 4797 49,761
Additions e 15 16 41 - 19,117 19,199
Depreciation provided R
during the year 8 (1,246) (2938) (537) (107) - (4,828)
Transfer in/(out) HA/(H) 318 1,143 44 JA] (1,908) -
Disposals & - (153) (19) () - (236)
Exchange realignment 5t (1,016) (1,147) (120) (2 (939) (3,49)
At 31 December 2018 W_F-NE+ZH=Z+—H 17,536 19,571 2,046 418 21,067 60,648
At 31 December 2018: 3 Sy 5 Y i
Cost WA 32,081 66,053 6,629 1,581 21,067 127,611
Accumulated depreciation 2T E R
and impairment (14,145) (46,482) (4383) (1,153) - (66,963)
Net carrying amount I 17,536 19,571 1,046 418 11,067 60,648
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 ] & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2019 #E - —JuéE+ 2 H =+ — A L4 %
14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 YHE-BREERZE (&)
(continued)
Notes: M Et -
(a) At 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s industrial (a) Ao —RE+H=Z1—H > KEEE
buildings with an aggregate carrying amount of US$5,719,000 R E 257198 K0 (ZF— )\ 4 ¢
(2018: US$6,200,000) were pledged to secure certain bank 62008 FE L) 2/ T LEMT > E/EAAK
borrowings of the Group (note 26(a)). AR 3 T SRAT A BRI 4R (M RE26(a)) ©
(b) Ownership certificates of certain properties with an aggregate (b) RoFZ—hE+HA=1+—H » REEW
carrying amount of US$864,000 (2018: US$935,000) at 31 Rt A R W 286,48 KT (ZF— N\
December 2019 are yet to be obtained. A O3S5HETE) XA T RIS A RE
2o
15 LAND LEASE PREPAYMENTS 15 FERNLEESE
2019 2018
“ER A R )\
Note US$’°000 US$’000
M 7t FL T FoL T
Carrying amount at 1 January Fy— H— B B A 6,667 8,183
Amortisation provided during the year A N EL AR B A 8 (170) (200)
Disposal 8 - (932)
Exchange realignment iEE 5o, i % (79) (384)
Carrying amount at 31 December P+ _H=+—HKEmE 6,418 6,667
Current portion included in prepayments, & AR ~ %4 K&
deposits and other receivables L Al IR AR =2 9 ) S 4 - (192)
Non-current portion Ik Bh 6 4 6,418 6,475
Note: Mt ¢
At 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s leasehold land with an NFE—NETZH=Z=+—H » REHGFHER
aggregate carrying amount of US$5,242,000 (2018: US$5,432,000) {6 45524. 283650 (R — )\4E 1 54328 30) 24
were pledged to secure certain bank borrowings of the Group (note T A0 B A b O A 2 A T BRAT A SR Z LA
26(a)). (Kt5E26(a))
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B 75 3R R M EE

Year ended 31 December 2019 &RE - F—WE+H=+—HILF)E

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 16

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost. Particulars of the

principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of  Nominal value of

incorporation/ issued and

Company name operations paid-up capital

Wr,/ C#TR

NEIEA B G N TR

Pucheng Chia Tai Biochemistry Co., Ltd. PRC/PRC  RMB 189,890,000

(Notes (i) and (ii)) BB 189,890,000\ B M
TR IE KA ACE PR A R (M 7E() R (i)

Zhumadian Huazhong Chia Tai Co., Ltd. PRC/PRC RMB 72,000,000

(Notes (i) and (ii)) BB 72,000,000\ R

BEF M 3 R IE KA R R (Wit (1) K (i)

Notes:

(i) The official name of the entity is in Chinese. The English

name is for identification purpose only.
(ii) Registered as a contractual joint venture under the PRC law.

The above table lists out the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
Group’s profit and losses or formed a substantial portion of the
Group. To give details of all the other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.
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W 24 0 B VTS e A BN o 5 35
B2 5 2 FEA T

Percentage of attributable
equity interest held by
Principal

Company Group activities
WAl 7 R HE T 40 B
AL A% XS 3/

- 69.7% Manufacturing
and sale of

chlortetracycline

and other animal drugs

EHEER

Al ) 4 4

- 69.7% Manufacturing
and sale of

chlortetracycline

and other animal drugs

Al ) 4 4

(i) % E A IE XA W2 h AR > A
1 At -

(i) AR R A A A

b B R Z A 4 E A F > R
Fy > B RACAE B SR AN AR
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R MY 5
Year ended 31 December 2019 #E ~F— L+ H =+ —H L4 ¥
17 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURE 17 REELENER
2019 2018
ZE A ZR)N\E
Note US$’000 US$’000
M 7t FLFi F T
Investments in joint venture, REBEENLRE
included in non-current assets: BENIERENE EN :
Share of net assets JRE Ay B (a) 100,792 90,559
Due from joint venture, included in e B A IR
prepayments, deposits and other B &R FAT IR
receivables ¥ 4 T L At E Wi M - 4
Interests in joint venture R EAEERREDRS 100,792 90,563
Notes: i3
(a) Particulars of the principal joint venture, which is indirectly (a) HAARMEFRAFZIZESGELEFBD
held by the Company, are as follows: T
Percentage of
HAEHESL
Place of Nominal value Interest
incorporation/ of issued and attributable Principal
Company name operations paid-up capital to the Group  Profit sharing activities
WL, LT R A M
VAR i B VE B A0 R P A T 4L JRE A R 25 R A ¥ 1) FEREG
ECI Metro Investment British Virgin US$12,000,000 50% 50% Investment
Co., Ltd. Islands/ 12,000,0005 70 holding and
SR BRI A Hong Kong trading of
e JB AT O machinery and
R spare parts

ECI Metro Investment Co., Ltd. (“ECI Metro
Investment”) was established by the Group with

an independent third party investor, to distribute

Caterpillar products in the western part of the PRC.

ECI Metro Investment is an unlisted corporate entity

whose quoted market price is not available.
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B % ] & M &
Year ended 31 December 2019 E R —NHFETH=1—HIL4)E
17 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURE 17 NEELENER (HF)

(continued)

Notes: (continued) M it (%)

(b) Summarised financial information of ECI Metro Investment (b) W R BOR AR 25 BAE AR G0
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “ECI Metro Group”), B RE LW E A G (SR SV EE
adjusted for any differences in accounting policy, and a [ 1) BY S0  ER RS > e A HRE B IR
reconciliation to the carrying amount in these financial WEEREENT
statements, are disclosed below:

2019 2018
ZE A ZR)N\F
US$’000 US$’000
B/ n e n

Gross amounts of ECI Metro Group'’s: S50 W S AE 1 DL R B JE A AR -
Currents assets W A 395,528 345,521
Non-current assets i mh A 65,519 58,609
Current liabilities A 240,129 207,288
Non-current liabilities Je i B £ A 19,334 15,724
Equity WE 2% 201,584 181,118

Included in the above assets and liabilities: FIPAN W32 99 &=L -8

Cash and cash equivalents B4 RBLEEEY 52,872 41,525
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
E K f&© ¥ B AR O A

Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 ] & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2019 #E - —JuéE+ 2 H =+ — A L4 %
17 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURE 17 REELENER (E)
(continued)
Notes: (continued) Mt - (%)
(b) (continued) (b) (%)
2019 2018
I Sy K3 TR )\
US$’000 US$’000
FLFii FILTIT
Revenue WA 654,467 894,842
Profit from operations #8755 Y Al 23,232 35,931
Other comprehensive income Fo b 2 1H WA (2,766) (10,717)
Total comprehensive income Ze T AR A A 20,466 25,214
Included in the above profit: A RAR A
Depreciation and amortisation LR Y& (5,541) (4,240)
Interest income FBBA 1,329 1,719
Interest expense FlEEH (790) (1,897)
Income tax expense Fi#d Bl (7,348) (23,752)
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in A 45 [ 17 B 40 W 4 4 1
ECI Metro Group: HE 25 () SR -
ECI Metro Group’s net assets 540 W 4 4 [ 201,584 181,118
Group effective interest AR B RO 50% 50%
Carrying amount in the consolidated S A T R 0 R G
financial statements 100,792 90,559
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B % ] & M &
Year ended 31 December 2019 E R —NHFETH=1—HIL4)E
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATE 18 REZEATINER
2019 2018
ZE U ZR—)\F
Note US$’000 US$’000
M it F L Fi S on
Investments in associate, REE AR MIRE -
included in non-current assets: BENIERBEEN :
Share of net assets FEAS - F B (a) 19,227 18,880
Due from associate, included in JRE WL W 2% A ) K 0E
prepayments, deposits and A B 7 T AT BR K
other receivables 322 4 T Al L B K 4,286 4,967
Interests in associate AN E B RE 25 23,513 23,847
Notes: Mfat :
(a) Particulars of the principal associate, which is indirectly held (a) H AR 22 | R R 2 3 B8 A ) R
by the Company, are as follows: T
Percentage of
HAEHSL
Place of Nominal value Interest
incorporation/ of issued and attributable Profit Principal
Company name operations paid-up capital to the Group sharing activities
Bor,” BT R A H
ARy B 0 R 5 A T {H R A HE 2 JE A ¥ FEEH
Zhanjiang Deni Vehicle PRC/PRC US$21,250,000 28% 28% Manufacture
Parts Co., Ltd. LTl 21,250,000 78 and sale of
TR S A B 2 ] automotive parts
E SR B AR AT
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CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
E K f&© ¥ B AR O A

Notes to the Financial Statements

BF 7% R & M
Year ended 31 December 2019 #E =& —JuF+ZH =+ — H 1L
18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATE (continued) 18 HREZEATRNER (&)
Notes: (continued) Mt : (%)
(b) The Group has interests in associate which are regarded as (b) A 42 [ 7 3 e 4 A0 s 18 B T K B T A
not individually material. The following table summarises, in W3 o T F MGt DLRE 25 3 51 MR 0 i 8 2
aggregate, the financial information of the associate that are i 11 B 5 ORE AR L -
accounted for using the equity method:
2019 2018
—ZFhE R )\
US$’000 US$’000
KL T B
Carrying amount in the consolidated T S T 2 ke 1 MR 1 i
financial statements 19,227 18,880
Amounts of the Group’s share of associate: AR B AN B o ]
Profit from operations Ft-giull 1,917 1,875
Other comprehensive income oAb 2 T W A (258) (1,077)
Total comprehensive income 2 TH W2 A 1,659 798
19 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 19 HkERBEE
The Group’s other non-current assets as at 31 December 2019 REEP - F-NWE{L _F—)NE+_H
and 2018 represent deposits paid for land use right. =+—H iy H A JE B A A e - Al RE R
s o
20 INVENTORIES 20 ®E
2019 2018
—EZ —EBN\E
US$’000 US$’000
E Ve FIT T T
Raw materials JE OB 2,413 2,364
Work in progress e B 5, 8,749 4,719
Finished goods R 12,706 6,130
23,868 13,213
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B % ] & M &
Year ended 31 December 2019 W E _F—JLETF_H=1+—HILFEE
TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 21 ERESEKRIAREE
2019 2018
ZE U ZR—)\F
US$’000 US$’000
E e E Sy
Trade receivables REWE 5 ik 20,178 16,457
Bills receivable R W S 324 152
20,502 16,609
Depending on the requirements of the market and business, WHRATE REBERK s AEBERKLE TR
the Group may extend credit to its customers. The Group seeks 5 B A o S 45 [ S A6 MR KR B A% 2 B
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. o BWHIEHA G ENMERMZ &R > &
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by management BE € I A 4R H 2 7% W 35 1B ) R o = ) R I B
and interest may be charged by the Group for overdue trade BYIAE - EFER > REHRAE W HE
receivables at rates determined by the Group with reference o fE B EL B o A B AS 4 1 ) 43 B R M E Wi
to market practice. In the opinion of the directors, there is no B 5 MRk B 5 2 A 4 B B 2w R
significant concentration of credit risk. Further details on the §E34(b) o AN [ E IR B ) Wk I T 0 2 MR i
Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from trade and SHr (DLEs & HB 36 %) W F -
bills receivables are set out in note 34(b). An aging analysis
of the Group’s trade and bills receivables, based on the date of
delivery of goods, is as follows:
2019 2018
“E-hE ZF )\
US$’000 US$’000
F L Fi e n
Trade and bills receivables: JE W 5 ek e S -
60 days or below 60H LT 15,054 12,414
61 to 180 days 61%180H 4,276 4,165
Over 180 days Z ¥ 180H 1,172 30
20,502 16,609
Note: et -

Included in the Group’s trade receivables as at 31 December 2019
are aggregate amount of US$923,000 (2018: US$630,000) due from
related companies, arising from transactions carried out in the ordinary
course of business of the Group. The balances are unsecured, bear
interest at rates determined by the Group after past due and are
repayable within credit periods similar to those offered by the Group to

its major customers.
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22 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22

Bl

BANERNR REREBERER

RECEIVABLES

2019 2018
—EJuE R )\
US$’000 US$’000
FL Tt FT Tt
Income tax receivables FEAT B A3 Bl 28 -
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FAATHRIK ~ 154 B At 8 R 5k 9,108 7,672
9,136 1,672

Note: Vi

Included in the Group’s prepayments, deposits and other receivables
as at 31 December 2019 was an aggregate amount of Nil (2018:
US$4,000) and US$4,286,000 (2018: US$4,967,000) due from joint
venture and associate respectievly. The balances are unsecured,

interest-free and with no fixed terms of repayment.

23 CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER 23
CASH FLOW INFORMATION

AEER R NNETH=Z T HZBEMNER
K A RO REWOR P > A Ak (2%
—J\4E 1 0.4 3T0) K428.6 8K TT (& — )\4 ¢
496.7H; KT ) 43 ) 2 ME WA 8 A 3 TR I A W) 2K
TE o WS R A SRR ~ SR8 T S I R Y -

RERBITERREGRERER

2019 2018
SECAE CE
US$’000 US$’000

F 7 T 70 FL T oL

Cash and bank balances B4 KRR AT &5 17

other than time deposits (R A 35 8 W AE %) 17,076 32,603
Time deposits & WE 20,698 20,815
Total cash and bank balances B4 e SRATTF Kk A 37,774 53,418
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Year ended 31 December 2019 &RE - F—WE+H=+—HILF)E

CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER 23
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

Notes:

(a)

At 31 December 2019, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
RMB118,769,000 equivalent to US$17,056,000 (2018:
RMB192,146,000, equivalent to US$27,939,000). RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies. However, under
mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB into other currencies through banks authorised

to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying
periods depending on the cash requirement of the Group, and
earn interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent

history of default.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

The table below sets out changes in the group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flow were, or future cash flow will be,
classified in the Group’s consolidated cash flow statement as

cash flows from financing activities.
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Year ended 31 December 2019 BRE R —N4E+_H=Z+—HIL4E)E

23

CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND OTHER 23

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued) (#&)
Notes: M Et -
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities (c)

(continued)

RERBITERREMBRERESN

Tl X B A AR i R R W R (D)

Total bank
borrowings
ST K A
US$’000
I T T
At 1 January 2018 Ro2—N\4E—H—H 9,440
Changes from financing cash flow: B AR -
Proceeds from bank borrowings SRATAG K Ak e 10,932
Repayment of bank borrowings PR ERATAE 3K (8,230)
Total changes from financing cash flows RE B &R AT 2,702
Exchange realignment TEE 5, 7 2% (511)
At 31 December 2018 R N\E+_H=+—HR
and 1 January 2019 “E-LE—H—H 11,631
Changes from financing cash flow: BB AR
Proceeds from bank borrowings SRAT A8 KB 153K I 6,548
Repayment of bank borrowings 8 2 SRAT A K (2,050)
Total changes from financing cash flows RE B &R EEEH) 4,498
Exchange realignment JeE e, 3 (178)
At 31 December 2019 RoR T A=+ —H 15,951
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Year ended 31 December 2019 E R —NHFETH=1—HIL4)E
TRADE PAYABLES 24 BENEFSEX
An aging analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the end of 7 A [ 7 T U0 R A B 5 R Ak = R B 4 M
the reporting period, based on the date of receipt of goods, is as (DB HH B RE) T :
follows:
2019 2018
Sk SE AR
US$’°000 US$’000
By n FL T
60 days or below 60H Z DL F 4,517 3,889
61 to 180 days 61%180H 134 40
4,651 3,929
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25 HtENSEIRKREREAR

2019 2018
“E A ZE - N\FE
US$’°000 US$’000

F 7T T 70 FoL T o0

Contract liabilities GHRARE 909 1,256
Accruals TR EH 3,834 4,624
Other payables Al R A5 R 3K 11,578 9,489

16,321 15,369

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has contract liabilities
of US$909,000 (2018: US$1,256,000), which represents
the obligation to transfer goods to customers for which the

consideration has been received.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there was a
decrease of US$1,256,000 in the contract liabilities (2018:
US$217,000) as a result of recognising revenue and an increase
in contract liabilities of US$909,000 (2018: US$1,256,000)
was recognised as a result of deposits received prior to goods

delivery.
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B 7% R 3R MY &
Year ended 31 December 2019 R E - F—NLE+_H=+—H L4
26 BANK BORROWINGS 26 BITER
2019 2018
2 R )\AE
Note US$’000 US$’000
M aE E Y i FEoLFo
Bank loans, secured AR AT A (a) 13,079 11,631
Bank loans, unsecured I LA SR AT AT K 2,872 -
Total bank borrowings SRAT AL 2k AB AR (c) 15,951 11,631
Analysed into amounts repayable: BRESFEINE -
Within one year or on demand — AR N R E R 9,012 2,059
In the second year A A 3,045 2,547
In the third to fifth year NE=FE A 3,894 6,391
Beyond five years AR - 634
Total bank borrowings BRAT I8 ka5t 15,951 11,631
Portion classified as current liabilities A3 JE B T B A A (9,012) (2,059)
Non-current portion I 7 B 5 A4 6,939 9,572
Notes: M it

(a) At 31 December 2019, certain of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment of US$5,719,000 (2018: US$6,200,000) (note
14(a)) and land lease prepayments of US$5,242,000 (2018:
US$5,432,000) (note 15) were pledged as security for bank

borrowings of the Group.

(b) All the bank borrowings of the Group were denominated in
RMB.
(c) As at 31 December 2019, none of the covenants relating to

bank borrowings had been breached (2018: nil).
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Year ended 31 December 2019 W E _F—JLETF_H=1+—HILFEE
OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 27 HtuERBEME
2019 2018
- S /S R\
US$’000 US$’000
E e E i an
Non-current portion of deferred income I I8 B A 0 2B YA 28,569 23,111
The deferred income of the Group as at 31 December 2019 AREFP _-Z2—HREXA_ZF—-NFET+H
and 2018 represent (i) the receipt from the government of =+ — H BB A S () R T A5
US$25,850,000 (2018: US$20,353,000) for the relocation Z M B O I 4 B HE 5 H BRI 442,585,085
of the Group’s certain production facilities which will be FKI6(ZF— )4 :2,03538FK L) » AT
recognised in profit or loss when certain conditions are PRAF B R - MR AR » TR (i) B WBUR #l
fulfilled; and (ii) the government grants received and will be Bl i 3 4 B 2 B ST T s AR B DL B AR
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the BB o
expected useful lives of the relevant assets.
DEFERRED TAX 28 EEBIIE
The components of the Group’s deferred tax liabilities and RN > A4 [ 2 98 Tt B IE £ 4 2 5 B A1 R
their movements during the year are as follows: mF:
Dividend
withholding
tax Others Total
Jie 8 88 Bt A oAt A
Note US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
Mt FILFIT FILF T FILFIT
At 1 January 2018 B _E—N\NE—H—H (2,699) (474) (3,173)
Deferred tax charged FERNREZ NI
to profit or loss I it 7 T
during the year 11 (601) (87) (688)
Exchange realignment [ b8, o 2% 4 2 6
At 31 December 2018 R )\E+A=Z+—H (3,296) (559) (3,855)
At 1 January 2019 R_Z—LE—H—H (3,296) (559) (3,855)
Deferred tax credited FRRBERZENFIAZ
to profit or loss HE FE A IH
during the year 11 47 97 144
Exchange realignment [ ba, e 2% (15) (3) (18)
At 31 December 2019 R _F—h&E+_H=1—H (3,264) (465) (3,729)
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Year ended 31 December 2019 #& £ _F—hE+_H=+—HILEE

28 DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. Any dividends distributable by the subsidiaries of
the Group established in mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008 onwards is subject to

withholding taxes.

At 31 December 2019, temporary differences unrecognised
for deferred tax liabilities relating to the undistributed
profits of subsidiaries amounted to US$2,340,000 (2018:
US$2,629,000). Deferred tax liabilities of US$235,000 (2018:
US$263,000) have not been recognised in respect of the tax
that would be payable on the distribution of these retained
profits as it is probable that profits will not be distributed in

the foreseeable future.

X E B ERA
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Year ended 31 December 2019 &RE - F—WE+H=+—HILF)E
SHARE CAPITAL 29 R
2019 2018
ZE U ZR—)\F
US$’000 US$’000
E Sy n 2 FEoLFoo
Authorised €
Ordinary shares: R
787,389,223 shares 787,389,223 1%
(2018: 787,389,223 shares) (= — )\4E : 787,389,223)1%)
of US$0.1 each 9 B E H0. 158 78 78,739 78,739
Convertible preference shares: A #R R (S0 IR -
12,610,777 shares 12,610,777/%
(2018: 12,610,777 shares) (ZF— )\4 1 12,610,7771%)
of US$0.1 each 9 B T HO. 136 70 1,261 1,261
80,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid DT KB
Ordinary shares: A
240,718,310 shares 240,718,310/
(2018: 240,718,310 shares) (=& — )4 1 240,718,310/%)
of US$0.1 each B R HAHO. 158 7T 24,072 24,072
Convertible preference shares: A # it BESE IR -
12,610,777 shares 12,610,777/
(2018: 12,610,777 shares) =& — )4 1 12,610,777)
of US$0.1 each B i 0. 158 78 1,261 1,261
25,333 25,333

There were no movements in the Company’s issued ordinary
shares and convertible preference shares during the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

RRE AR EF A=
AL ARJE R > A2 7] B BT MM 2 T St

- - hFEF§

137



138

CHIA TAI ENTERPRISES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

E X &© ¥ 8 B &R D

Notes to the Financial Statements
B % 3R & Mt 5
Year ended 31 December 2019 #& £ _F—hE+_H=+—HILEE

29

SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 29

Notes:

The convertible preference shares are convertible into ordinary shares
of the Company and are entitled to the same dividends that are
declared for the ordinary shares. Convertible preference shares do not
carry the right to vote in shareholders’ meeting. Upon winding up, the
Company’s residual assets and funds are distributed to the members of

the Company in the following priority:

(i) in paying to the holders of the convertible preference shares,
pari passu as between themselves by reference to the aggregate
nominal amounts of the convertible preference shares held
by them respectively, an amount equal to the aggregate of
the distribution value (as defined in the bye-laws of the
Company) of all the convertible preference shares held by

them respectively;

(ii) the balance of such assets shall be distributed on a pari passu
basis among the holders of any class of shares in the capital
of the Company other than the convertible preference shares
and other than any shares which are not entitled to participate
in such assets, by reference to the aggregate nominal amounts

paid up on the shares held by them respectively; and

(iii) the remaining balance of such assets shall belong to and be
distributed on a pari passu basis among the holders of any class
of shares including the convertible preference shares, other
than any shares not entitled to participate in such assets, by
reference to the aggregate nominal amounts of shares held by

them respectively.

The convertible preference shares shall be non-redeemable by

the Company or the holders thereof.
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Year ended 31 December 2019 &RE - F—WE+H=+—HILF)E

RESERVES

(a)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2018 are presented in the consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

The capital reserve mainly represents: (i) the
amount of the equity interests acquired pursuant to
a group reorganisation in 2015, and (ii) the deemed
contribution arising from the transfer of equity interests

in prior years.

The PRC reserve funds are reserves set aside in
accordance with PRC Companies Law or the Law of
the PRC on Joint Ventures Using Chinese and Foreign
Investment. None of the Group’s PRC reserve funds as
at 31 December 2019 and 2018 were distributable in

the form of cash dividends.

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies

set out in note 2.4(0).

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases certain of its equipment, properties and

land under operating leases arrangements, with the leases

negotiated with original terms ranging from 1 to 5 years.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum

lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling

due as follows:

30

31

e

(a)

(b)

(c)

EX VLY VS e S e
RS E A IR 2 4
TS W B0 R S B 2

B RN OR 2T TR
52 8 1 AL AW P BB o % (i) R AR R
SRLE 34 SRR (e gl

o R i R < T R4 v A R 3
9 i b AR A S 4B AR A o
AEEP R NER R )\F
T ZH =+ B2l 3 A RE
VLB 4 B B2 5 AR o

A T 99 T8 £k A 0 455 40 B ¥l A1 S 5 2
5 A P A 2R 1 i A B S 22 o kAl
75 R B 5 2.4 (o) BT A 7 51 SR B
Iﬂo

ReRERY

AL EMB LR M E LA E TRME D
S L > B ol SR ALY A 1 S AR ARG o

PR NEHZA=Z+—H > REBEA T
IR o ARG R AR 21 f5c 1K 48 HE A AL
BRI

2018

ZE )N\

US$’000

FC T IC

Within one year —4E R 89
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Year ended 31 December 2019 #E ~F— L+ H =+ —H L4 ¥
32 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32 EAREIE
(a) The Group had the following capital commitments as (a) AREER IR EPRZEARREWT -
at the end of the reporting period:
2019 2018
SELE CE N
US$’°000 US$’'000
FoFo FLF
Contracted, but not provided for: CER A > H W RAE B -
Property, plant and machinery LE WY ¥ 19,510 16,863
(b) The Group’s share of capital commitments of the joint (b) A AL BB EARRPEWT
ventures is as follows:
2019 2018
S L=
US$’000 US$’000
F L FiL FLF
Contracted, but not provided for CEEA » H R AE B 1,022 323

33 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 33 BEALHE

(a) Transactions with related parties

The Group had the following transactions with related

parties during the year:

Sales of goods to:

C.P. Pokphand Co., Ltd. and its
subsidiaries (“CPP Group”)*

High Orient Enterprises Limited and
its related entities, excluding CPP
Group®

Other related entities with same
shareholders as CPG

(a) HEHBEEALIHXRES

5t
2019
ZE U
US$’°000
F T
HEEMT
I e o] B AL A ) B
O A ([ e ]) - 3,006
High Orient Enterprises Limited
BB A E » ARG b
£ 2,829
BLCPGH M I Jit 3/ 2
At ) 7 A 3 202

AL RN EBEEAN LA U TR

2018
S
US$’000
KT T

2,306

2,362
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Year ended 31 December 2019 &RE - F—WE+H=+—HILF)E

33 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

33

BEALHKE (&)

(continued)
(a) Transactions with related parties (continued) (a) HEEALHRS (HE)
Note: M it
Prices of goods sold to related parties were determined with T ) 2N 8 5 Y O R 4R D MR
reference to the cost of raw materials, other value added, A~ HoAb g0 - AL R R B B
reasonable profit margins, market demand for goods and B 2 R B b M 3 5 = J A3 M T A0
competitive prices offered by independent third-party suppliers BRS04 T 35 3% T DA T R o 7B T B
of similar products. The procedures for determining the prices N L 8 8 B B T AR R T B E )
of goods sold to related parties are the same as those used for LR Z 07 % B RE I B S K BT —
determining the prices of goods supplied to independent third B o [ BN b Y B R K RS R AS 4R
party customers. Selling prices to related parties shall be no BTBIULEZ R ZEMH -
more favourable than those made available to the Group’s
customers which are independent third parties.
# These related party transactions also constituted # W5 N 38 B ok b iR B
continuing connected transactions as defined in FUUARENERZFFEMER S -
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
(b)  Outstanding balances with related parties (b) EHREEALZBERBER
Details of the Group’s balances with joint venture, AT DG R W 5 Rk R e
associate and related companies included in trade B8~ B HREK ~ 3 4 B I il R KOR k
and bills receivables, prepayments, deposits and ZAREHBELAESCE S BHEAFRH
other receivables are disclosed in notes 21 and 22, A ] 2Z [ B BR AR O 4 Il B 2R R B
respectively. 21522 -
(c) Compensation of key management personnel (c) EEFTETEAE (FEBEE)2HE
who are also directors of the Group
2019 2018
—EJuE R )\
US$’000 US$’000
0 T7C FTT T T
Short term employee benefits IR B R A 932 1,170
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Year ended 31 December 2019 #E - —JuéE+ 2 H =+ — A L4 %
34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34 HERBEESSRBE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Group has exposed to the following risks: N TR ) N
(a) Interest rate risk (a) EXER
The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk relates AR R R B R AR
primarily to the Group’s debt obligations. The Group 2 s 8 T AT o A4 [ 3 4 i A 2R
does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge Sl FLS P I B R A B AT o A4
its interest rate risk. The Group’s exposure to market RS R A 5| BB K B4
risk arising from changes in interest rates in respect ) 2 T 55 R i A T R AR A o
of cash and cash equivalents is considered relatively
minimal.
The following table sets out the carrying amounts 7 A B 7 i 00 R T ) S JEL B = SR
of the Group’s bank borrowings as at the end of the e B IREERS T

reporting period that are exposed to interest rate risk:

2019 2018
“E R )\
Carrying Effective Carrying Effective
amount  interest rate amount interest rate
USRI BB AR W T B BR &
US$’000 % US$’000 %
VT o E e n
Fixed rate il 5& F] K 4% DL F
denominated in: B LA
RMB N 2,872 4.35 - -
Floating rate TR R T
denominated in: B A
RMB N R 13,079 5.42 11,631 5.64
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Year ended 31 December 2019 &RE - F—WE+H=+—HILF)E

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(a) Interest rate risk (continued) (a) EBEEREK(E)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, through
the impact on floating rate bank borrowings, of the

Group’s profit after tax and equity (with all other

variables held constant):

2019

I S IS
Increase/
(decrease)
in profit
after tax
and equity
b it %

i A B2

HE 25 38 m
(W &)
US$’000

F L Fi

4 m 1003 B _
Ik A 1003 B _

Increase by 100 basis points
Decrease by 100 basis points

B A5 B B T ¢ R UK ()

T2 VR 0 R AT B £ B R
ST > A S W 1 B 45 S 2 i
A (05 R 5

2018
—%
Increase/
(decrease)
in profit
after tax
and equity

B i 1%

i A1) B

HE 25 34 m
(W)
US$’000
FoLFor
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Year ended 31 December 2019 BRE R —N4E+_H=Z+—HIL4E)E

34 FINA

NCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The Group places its cash deposits with a number
of major banks. This cash management policy limits
the Group’s exposure to concentration of credit risk.
impairment on cash and cash equivalents has been
measured on 12-month ECLs. The Group considers
that its cash and cash equivalents have minimal
credit risk based on the external credit ratings of the
counterparties (i.e. banks and financial institutions

where cash and cash equivalents are placed).

The credit risk associated with trade receivables is
considered relatively minimal due to the Group’s
large customer base and its geographical dispersion.
The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations
of its customers’ financial conditions. Appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired. The allowance
recognised is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective

interest rate computed at initial recognition.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group’s historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the
Group’s different customer bases. The Group assessed
that there is no significant loss allowance recognised in
accordance with IFRS 9 as at 31 December 2019 and
2018 and no ECL rate has therefore been disclosed.

B AR L
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Year ended 31 December 2019 &RE - F—WE+H=+—HILF)E

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group considered that the entire trade receivable
balances have the same credit risk exposure. The
expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past five years. These rates are adjusted to
reflect differences between economic conditions during
the period over which the historic data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of the

receivables.
Foreign currency risk

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies.
All foreign exchange transactions are conducted with
reference to the exchange rates quoted by the People’s
Bank of China. Payments for imported materials and
remittance of earnings out of mainland China are

subject to the availability of foreign currencies.

Export sales of the Group are conducted primarily
in US$. For certain subsidiaries, joint venture and
associate, funds denominated in RMB may have to
be, and from time to time are, converted into US$ or
other foreign currencies for the purchase of imported

materials and equipment.

Should RMB appreciate/depreciate against US$, it may
reduce/increase the foreign currency equivalent of such
earnings available for distribution by these subsidiaries,

joint venture and associate of the Company.
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Year ended 31 December 2019 # £ " —JuE+ A =+ — HILEK
34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34 HKEEES S RBK (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(c)  Foreign currency risk (continued) (c) HSERBK(E)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at T 2% B A G At 55 A R R B R U0
the end of the reporting period to a possible change T o AR 2 5 B AT i A B R 2% (B
in RMB exchange rates, with all other variables held A 4 Y [ A B A R 2 B R R
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax and equity ABEZARMEET) REE B RE A
(due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets R W B 2 W] Rl B 2k 2 A 2 R
and liabilities of the Group’s foreign subsidiaries). The BE o 3% A A AT S AL HE R A Hh 3 % B
analysis excludes differences that would result from 5 i 3% 2 A 4R T 2 A i 1 W I T BB R
the translation of the financial statement of foreign R R o
operations into the Group’s presentation currency.
Increase/
Appreciation/ (decrease) Increase/
(depreciation) in profit (decrease)
in RMB before tax in equity
ANREETHE B ¢ Ty ¥8: A HE £
(248)  Bm/ (WA) B/ (W)
US$’000 US$’000
FxF FxF
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE_ZF—NI4E+ZH
Z=+—HILEE
If US$ weakens against RMB T A\ R ME 3% (533) (453)
If US$ strengthens against RMB i 3250 A\ R ¥ THE (3%) 533 453
Year ended 31 December 2018  #FE & — )4+ _H
=t —HIE4E
If US$ weakens against RMB BN YN AN 3% (578) (491)
If US$ strengthens against RMB 4 3% 708§ A\ R ¥ THE (3%) 578 491
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Year ended 31 December 2019 &RE - F—WE+H=+—HILF)E

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between

funding continuity and flexibility through the use of

various types of bank borrowings.

The Group monitors current and expected liquidity

requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient

reserves of cash and bank facilities to meet its liquidity

requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities

as at the end of the reporting period, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

At 31 December 2019

B A5 B B T ¢ R UK ()

(d)

RBESRAR

ACSR 0 H B S 72 8 ) A TR SR Y
SRAT AR AR > A5 4 2 A B
Z [ ~F- 4 o

AHR B R BN R 2 B W

SR DL e A A0 4 00 55 4 o e G
5 DUREAS FOREH % 4 K o

TRBERREHRZEIHE > KL
VAR £ A0 AR U Bk L S 5 4

RE-Z-WEH+ZA=+—H

Within
1 year or 1to5
on demand years Total
R 8k
PR —E S —ELAE okl

US$’000  US$’000  US$’000
X Frx KrTtrx KrFr

Trade payables JE AT B 5 R 3k 4,651 - 4,651
Other payables and accruals At W A+ MR R I FEAR 8 15,412 - 15,412
Bank borrowings HAT A 9,012 6,939 15,951
Estimated interests on 5T SR AT 15 3 A 8
bank borrowings 807 1,827 2,634
29,882 8,766 38,648
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Year ended 31 December 2019 B E R —JLFE T _H=+—H ILFE)JE
34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34 HKEEES S RBK (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) d)y RBESLER(E)
At 31 December 2018 B _EF—-N\NE+_H=+—H
Within
1 year or lto Over
on demand 5 years 5 years Total
HE R,
B — 4 —EhHE 7 A48 LA fke|
US$’000 US$'000 US$’000 US$’000
FErL T FL T FL T FEr T
Trade payables JEATE 5 B 3,929 - - 3,929
Other payables and accruals Al B A Rk B
HERH 14,113 - - 14,113
Bank borrowings AT 3K 2,059 8,938 634 11,631
Estimated interests on Mwh R AT A5 30 A B
bank borrowings 658 2,859 203 3,720
20,759 11,797 837 33,393
(e) Capital management (e) BEREE
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital AR 4 BB A Y B H A A PR AR

management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not

subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
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Year ended 31 December 2019 &RE - F—WE+H=+—HILF)E
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 35 ZXATGMEBHERRE
THE COMPANY
2019 2018
ZE A RN\
US$’000 US$’000
e i E e n
NON-CURRENT ASSET I i B &
Investments in subsidiaries T B o R B 3 25,924 23,654
CURRENT ASSETS i By &
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables THAT WK~ 4% 4 B I il JRE R 3K 48 1,375
Cash and cash equivalents Bla R Bl &% mY 18,247 18,464
Total current assets B B E R 18,295 19,839
CURRENT LIABILITY b R K
Other payables and accruals Gt A R ok B T AR B 203 2,413
NET CURRENT ASSETS B B 18,092 17,426
TOTAL ASSETS LESS A8 B R ) £ 1
CURRENT LIABILITIES 44,016 41,080
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY I Wik By £ 1
Other non-current liability oAt I it B £ A 30 26
NET ASSETS &R F 43,986 41,054
EQUITY BE 25
Issued Capital T T A 25,333 25,333
Reserves (note) it (M) 18,653 15,721
TOTAL EQUITY E #5 40 %A 43,986 41,054
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35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 35
THE COMPANY (continued)

Bl

A F B R R (&)

Note: M Et -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RAFZHERENT -
Exchange
Retained fluctuation
profits reserve Total
A 43 LA A BE Dk ) 5 1 ok
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
ESme on FILTFIT ES
At 1 January 2018 W N\E—H—H 13,358 27 13,385
Profit for the year | 2,336 - 2,336
At 31 December 2018 and W_ZF— ) E+H=Z+—HK
1 January 2019 ZE—hFE—H—H 15,694 27 15,721
Profit for the year AR 2,932 - 2,932
At 31 December 2019 RoZ—-hE++H=+—H 18,626 27 18,653
36 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 36 Hh&HIE2EE

The COVID-19 outbreak has brought about additional
uncertainties in the Group’s operating environment in China.
Whilst the Group has put in place contingency measures to
lower the impact to its business operations, some disruptions

have been unavoidable.
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